
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 

 
Thursday, 4th November, 2010 

 
2.30 pm 

 
Wantsum Room, Sessions House, County Hall, 

Maidstone 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
 
 

Thursday, 4th November, 2010, at 2.30 pm Ask for: Geoff Mills 
Wantsum Room, Sessions House, County 
Hall, Maidstone 

Telephone 01622 69489, 
geoff.mills@kent.go
v.uk 

   
Tea/Coffee will be available from outside the meeting room 

 
Membership (8) 
 
Conservative (7): Mr P B Carter (Chairman), Mr R W Gough (Vice-Chairman), 

Mr D A Hirst, Mr A J King, MBE, Mr K G Lynes, Mrs J A Rook and 
Mr J D Simmonds 
 

Liberal Democrat (1): Mr T Prater 
 

 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 

 
 

 A.  COMMITTEE BUSINESS 

1. Membership - to report that Mrs J Rook has joined the Committee in place of Mrs J 
Whittle  

2. Substitutes  

3. Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the Agenda for this meeting.  

4. Minutes (Pages 1 - 4) 

5. Travel Savings (Pages 5 - 10) 

6. Change to Keep Succeeding (Pages 11 - 62) 

           MOTION TO EXCLUDE THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 



EXEMPT ITEMS 
 

(During these items the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public) 
 

7. Interim Director of Integrated Transport Strategy and Planning - Extension of 
Temporary Employment Contract (Pages 63 - 64) 

 
 
Peter Sass 
Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership 
(01622) 694002 
 
Wednesday, 27 October 2010 
 
 
Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers 
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant 
report. 
 



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Personnel Committee held in the Wantsum Room, 
Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Thursday, 9 September 2010. 
 
PRESENT: Mr R W Gough (Vice-Chairman), Mr D A Hirst, Mr A J King, MBE, 
Mr K G Lynes, Mr T Prater, Mr J D Simmonds and Mrs J Whittle. 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs A Beer (Director of Personnel & Development) and 
Mr G Mills (Democratic Services Manager (Executive)). 
 
APOLOGIES:  Mr P B Carter 
 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
1. Minutes of the last meeting 12 May 2010  
(Item 3) 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12 May 2010 were agreed as a true record and 
signed by the Chairman.  
 
 
2. Employment Policy - Pay, Policy & Terms and Conditions Update  
(Item 4 – report by Mr Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Corporate Support and 
Performance Management and Mrs Amanda Beer, Director of Personnel & 
Development) 
 
(1) This report drew the Committee’s attention to recent changes to employment 
policy, presented a recommendation for a change to probation policy and highlighted 
areas for further potential change affecting terms and conditions. 
 
(2)   Mr Simmonds said and it was agreed that sick pay should be included as part 
of the review of terms and conditions  
 
(3)  Following discussion Mr R W Gough proposed and Mr A J King seconded that 
the recommendations set out in the report as far as the Electronic Communications 
User Policy was concerned be approved. Carried (5:2) It was further agreed that 
there would be a further report on the operation of the Policy in 12 Months time  
 
(4)  Resolved that subject to the approval of the Electronic Communications User 
Policy, a further report on the other matters covered in the Committee report, and to 
include sick pay, be submitted once the consultations with the Unions had been 
concluded and their views known.  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 

3. Flexible Deployment of Staff  
(Item 5 - report by Mr Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Corporate Support and 
Performance Management and Mrs Amanda Beer Director of Personnel & 
Development) (Mr Nigel Fairburn, Workforce Development Manager was present for 
this item)  
 
(1)  This report presented some proposals for achieving a more radical shift in the 
approach to deployment allowing more flexibility for employees to move role within 
KCC. To be effective across the whole organisation KCC needed to develop a 
strategic approach to deployment, informed by intelligence about its workforce and 
through collaboration.  
 
(2)  During the course of discussion Mr K G Lynes proposed and Mr A J King 
seconded  that employment contracts needed to be more generic and the unions 
consulted on how that could be implemented with a report back to the Committee. 
Carried (6:1)  
 
(3)  Resolved that ways to make employment contracts more generic should be 
consulted on with the unions and a further report submitted to the Committee. 
 
 
4. Travel Savings  
(Item 6 - report by Mr Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Corporate Support and 
Performance Management and Mrs Amanda Beer Director of Personnel & 
Development ( Mr Colin Miller, Reward Manager was present for this item)  
 
Following discussion on this matter, the Committee asked for further information to 
be provided and reported to the Corporate Policy and Overview Scrutiny Committee 
with a further report being submitted to the Personnel Committee on the impact of 
these proposals.  
 
 
5. Employee Engagement Strategy  
(Item 7 -report by Mr Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Corporate Support and 
Performance Management and Mrs Amanda Beer, Director of Personnel & 
Development) 
 
(1) This report provided a brief overview of KCC's proposed Employee 
Engagement strategy, 'Motiv8' and the rationale for taking such an approach. In 
doing so, the aim was to transform employee engagement from a reactive to a 
proactive activity that significantly contributed to organisational development and 
performance improvement. In adopting this more strategic approach to Employee 
Engagement, it was anticipated that rather than being a one-off bi-annual process, 
employee engagement would become a continual focal point for the organisation, 
significantly contributing to organisational development and improvement. 
 
(2)     Resolved that the proposed strategy and accompanying action plan be 
approved and agreement be given to its implementation.  
 
 
 

Page 2



 

6. Kent Scheme & Revised Performance Appraisal Process Update  
(Item 8 - report by Mr Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Corporate Support and 
Performance Management and Mrs Amanda Beer, Director of Personnel & 
Development) (Mr Colin Miller, Reward Manager was present for this item) 
 
(1)  From 1 April 2010 all Kent Scheme Staff were transferred to new Pay ranges 
and a revised performance appraisal scheme was introduced. This report provided 
an update on the project including staff communication, trade union consultation, 
manager training and associated system changes. 
 
(2)  In response to a question from Mr Prater, Mrs Beer said that whilst further 
information could be provided in future reports around the number of staff at the top 
of their grades it would not be possible to give a like for like comparison on 
information related to historic pay progression.  
 
(3)   Resolved that the progress made on the implementation of the revised Kent 
Scheme reward structure and the communication, training and support given to 
managers and staff to support this change be noted  
 
 
7. Performance management of senior managers - (To Follow)  
(Item 9) 
 
Mrs Beer said as the County Council was undertaking a review of its senior 
management structure which would include changes to job descriptions and titles, 
this report had been withdrawn until that work had been completed. 
 
8. Future meetings of the Committee  
 
As the Council would be undergoing a period of structural change over the coming 
months the Committee agreed that it should meet more frequently during that period 
and therefore arrangements would be put in hand to plan additional meetings 
accordingly 
 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\9\AI00014903\$arixgsmo.doc 

By: Roger Gough – Cabinet Member for Corporate Support 
and Performance Management 
Amanda Beer – Director of Personnel & Development 

 
To: Personnel Committee   Date:  4 November 2010 
 
Subject: Travel savings 
 
Classification:  Unrestricted 
 
SUMMARY:  This report asks Personnel Committee to consider the generation of  

cost savings from travel expenditure by the proposed removal of 
Essential User and Subsidised Lease Car provisions. 

 
1.  Context 
 
1.1 A paper was presented to the previous Personnel Committee meeting on 9 

September 2010.  The Personnel Committee decision was deferred to enable 
further consideration of the implications to Commercial Services.  Subsequent 
discussion between the Cabinet portfolio holder for Corporate Support and 
Performance Management (which includes Personnel and Development and 
Commercial Services) and relevant officers has resulted in confirmation that 
the proposal to remove the subsidised lease car scheme, in conjunction with 
the essential user allowance, should proceed.  However, ways to encourage 
subsidised lease car users to transfer to the extended lease car scheme on a 
voluntary basis should be established.  A review of this would be undertaken 
at the end of the first year following withdrawal of the subsidised scheme to 
establish the numbers of people who have transferred.  An implication of the 
extended scheme is that business mileage would be reimbursed at the lease 
car rather than casual user rate, as outlined in Section 2.1. 

 
1.2 A transition arrangement for subsidised lease car contracts has also been 

discussed.  This allows for contracts that are due to expire before the 31st 
March 2011, to be extended to the 31st March 2011 and will apply in the large 
majority of cases, however, an extension for cars with large excess mileage 
or excessive maintenance costs may not be accepted by the lease car 
company. This will assist by supporting individuals as it gives a longer period 
to put in place alternative car or travel arrangements.  All subsidised vehicle 
lease contracts due to expire on or after the 31st March 2011 would not be 
extended. 

 
1.3 Discussing the potential removal of essential user and subsidised lease car 

arrangements at the previous Staff Quarterly meeting resulted in Unison 
requesting that their dissatisfaction with this proposal be conveyed to 
Personnel Committee. 

 
2. Background 
 
2.1 KCC has 3 categories of payments for car provision: 
 

a.  Casual user for individuals who use their own car for business mileage. 
The mileage rate is 40p per mile (25ppm after 10,000 miles) where 
approximately 30% of this covers fuel and the remainder is for 
maintenance and running costs.  The rate is set by the Treasury and 
paying an amount higher than this would result in a tax liability.   

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\9\AI00014903\$arixgsmo.doc 

 
b. This Essential User category is for individuals who use their own car for 

business journeys and satisfy eligibility criteria.  A minimum of 2,500 miles 
need to be driven or individuals are within defined professional groups 
driving more than 1,500 business miles per annum.  A taxable annual 
payment of £833 is made.  Mileage rate is 34.4p per mile decreasing to 
16.5p per mile once 11,000 miles have been driven. 

 
 c. Essential users also have the option to lease a car at a subsidised rate.  

The mileage rate is only intended to cover fuel which, dependant on 
engine capacity is in the range of 12-15p per mile.  This is reviewed and 
set by the HMRC.  The cost of the lease arrangement is funded by both 
the employee and KCC.  The employer contribution for most cars equates 
to £2,269 per annum. 

 
2.2 During 2008, KCC undertook analysis of Essential Users to review the actual 

mileage claimed by each individual as a way of auditing compliance. 
 
2.3 This resulted in the removal of approximately 1000 users.  Directorates were 

also concerned about individuals in key roles requiring frequent use of a car 
but not meeting the 2,500 mile criteria.  This resulted in agreeing the jobs 
which were allowed to retain the essential user status so long as business 
mileage was in excess of 1,500 miles.  This includes social worker roles and 
Education Psychologists. 

 
2.4 An up to date mileage report for each category of user is shown in Appendix 1. 
 
3.  Comparative costs 
 
3.1 The break even point where it becomes cheaper for the authority to offer 

essential user status compared to casual is 15,000 miles. The break even 
point for lease cars compared to casual user is 8,000 miles due to the lower 
mileage rates. 

 
4. Implications  
 
4.1 There are a number of factors which need to be considered, which include 

effective date of change, contractual arrangements, consultation and 
communication requirements along with notice and transition periods.  Whilst 
we are confident in our legal ability to remove and alter such allowances, this 
needs to be with suitable notice and transitional protection (Court of Appeal 
case concerning Birmingham City Council).   

 
4.2 Reducing the number of lease cars will negatively impact the income 

generation for KCC delivered by Commercial Services although there is still 
an overall cost saving to the authority is still generated. 

 
4.3 There are potential employee relations implications as staff and trade unions 

are likely to see this as a diminution of their employment package.  
Resistance is likely both individually and collectively, in such forms as 
appeals, grievances, informal TU action or pressure and potentially legal or 
contractual challenge. 

 
 
 

Page 6



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\9\AI00014903\$arixgsmo.doc 

5.   Costs, savings and being competitive 
 
5.1 Remove essential user status generates approximately £1.5m saving 

Remove subsidised lease car provision generates approximately £1.5m 
saving, however, this would potentially have an impact on turnover within 
Commercial Services which would in turn reduce the contribution made back 
to KCC by approximately £900k. 

 
5.2 The costs of each scheme are shown in Appendix 2. 
 
5.3 The income from lease cars could be increased if the employer contribution 

was decreased with a corresponding increase in employee contribution.  
However this would make the lease car option considerably less appealing to 
employees. 

 
5.4 If the essential user status was removed there may be a proportion of 

essential users who would wish to transfer to lease car status, however the 
actual numbers will be influenced by any changes to lease car eligibility rules.  
Under the current rules, no employee would be eligible for a lease car as the 
criteria are the same.  Currently there are more than twice the number of 
essential users than lease car users. 

 
5.5 We know from previous experience that it is much simpler when there are 

clear rules and guidance when changing provisions.  Removing the essential 
user allowance without reference to the lease car scheme will cause 
confusion and extra expense as more lease cars are requested.  Altering the 
eligibility criteria or employer contribution would only be making marginal 
changes around lease car eligibility.  In order to deliver the most consistent 
and robust approach both provisions should be removed. 

 
5.6 Should there be local recruitment or retention difficulties as a result, there is 

provision for payments to be made under the Market Premium Policy.  This 
enables managers to make payments following a robust authorisation 
process.  Any such payments would diminish the overall savings from the 
removal of the essential user and lease car schemes but could be applied in a 
more sophisticated and focused manner.   For example, the market premium 
could be used as a payment toward the extended lease car scheme.  

 
5.7 The removal of the subsidised lease scheme would not leave employees 

without options.  Commercial Services can make lease cars available to 
employees on a voluntary basis therefore not requiring the authority to pay for 
employer contributions.  The range or cars is also broader under this scheme. 

 
6.  Conclusions 
 
6.1 We know from experience of the review of essential users that allowing 

exceptions causes difficulty, confusion and inconsistency. 
 
6.2 Removal of essential user provision alone would deliver savings however this 

could result in more lease cars being requested which would ultimately 
increase costs for the authority. 

 
6.3 If the eligibility criteria were raised for lease cars in a way which restricts 

access too much then there becomes a point where there is no real case to 
retain the provision, be it essential user or lease car provision. 

Page 7



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\9\AI00014903\$arixgsmo.doc 

 
6.4 The cleanest approach is to remove essential user and lease cars in a 

consistent manner. 
 
6.5 The employment relations fallout from the removal of essential user and lease 

car arrangements is harder to cost but was disproportionately high when 
reviewing essential user mileage18 months ago.   

 
6.6 If a clear and unambiguous approach is to be taken, which delivers the 

greatest savings and removes scope for exceptions and grey areas, then 
removal of both the essential user and lease car provision should be 
considered.   

 
6.7 The full savings from lease cars will take up to 4 years to be realised as lease 

arrangements come to an end. 
 
7.  Recommendation 
 
7.1 No new members to subsidised lease cars or allocation of essential user 

allowance with immediate effect and withdrawal of essential user allowance to 
current recipients from 1 April 2011.   

 
7.2 Existing lease car users whose contracts come to an end before 1 April 2011 

would not be renewed however transition arrangements allowing the 
extension to 31 March would be introduced.   

 
 
 
Paul Royel        Colin Miller   
Head of Employment Strategy    Reward Manager 
Ext 4608       Ext 6056

Page 8



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\9\AI00014903\$arixgsmo.doc 

         Appendix 1. 

Mileage Report 
 
 
Data extracted from Oracle 19th April 2010. Data is for the period 1 April 2009 – 31 

March 2010. 

 
Number of Individuals by User-Type by Mileage Category 
 

Mileage Range Casual Car User Essential Car User Lease Car User Grand Total 

1 - 499 2,669 155 91 2,915 

500 - 999 894 171 111 1,176 

1,000 - 1,499 550 191 108 849 

1,500 - 1,999 370 204 105 679 

2,000 - 2,499 256 233 104 593 

2,500 - 2,999 151 205 130 486 

3,000 - 3,499 127 226 88 441 

3,500 - 3,999 74 166 81 321 

4,000 - 4,499 73 142 39 254 

4,500 - 4,999 50 123 57 230 

>= 5,000 202 607 202 1,011 

Grand Total 5,416 2,423 1,116 8,955 

Max Individual 
Mileage 

18,945 17,414 37,395  

 
 
 
 
Proportion by User-Type by Mileage Category 
 

Mileage Range Casual Car User Essential Car User Lease Car User Grand Total 

1 - 499 49% 6% 8% 33% 

500 - 999 17% 7% 10% 13% 

1,000 - 1,499 10% 8% 10% 9% 

1,500 - 1,999 7% 8% 9% 8% 

2,000 - 2,499 5% 10% 9% 7% 

2,500 - 2,999 3% 8% 12% 5% 

3,000 - 3,499 2% 9% 8% 5% 

3,500 - 3,999 1% 7% 7% 4% 

4,000 - 4,499 1% 6% 3% 3% 

4,500 - 4,999 1% 5% 5% 3% 

>= 5,000 4% 25% 18% 11% 

Grand Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 
 

Page 9



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\9\AI00014903\$arixgsmo.doc 

 
         Appendix 2. 
 
1.  Essential user - Conversion of all essential users to casual user status 
 
Factors:- 
Users - 2400 
Lump Sum - £833 
Average mileage - 3680 
Essential user pence per mile – 34.4 
Casual user pence per mile – 40 
 
Total lump sum  = 2400 x £833  = £1,999k 
Mileage costs  = 3680 x 2400 x £0.344  = £3,038k 
Total       = £5,037k 
 
Cost if all on casual user status 
 
2400 x 3680 x £0.40     = £3,533k 
 
Saving      = £1,504k 
 
 
2.  Lease Car - Conversion of all lease users to casual user status 
 
Users – 1116 
Employer contribution (annual) - £2,269 
Average mileage - 3242 
Lease car pence per mile – 12 
Casual user pence per mile – 40 
 
Employer contribution = 1116 x £2,269   =  £2,532k 
Income returned to KCC      = -£   900k 
 
Mileage costs   = 1116 x 3242 x 0.12  =  £   434k 
Cost if all on casual user  = 1116 x 3242 x 0.40  =  £1,447k 
 
Increased mileage cost     =  £1,013k 
 
Net saving       =   £ 619k 
 
 
Potential combined annual saving achieved within 4years =  £2,123k 

Page 10



  
 
By: Jeff Hawkins – Transformation Programme Manager 
 

To: Personnel Committee  
 
Subject: Change to Keep Succeeding 
 
Classification: Unrestricted 
 
 

SUMMARY:  “Change to Keep Succeeding” is a report by the Group Managing  
Director and the Leader of the Council on the transformation of the  
County Council’s operating framework.  The Personnel Committee will  
be given a presentation on the report, the management structure it 
proposes, and the process for consulting with staff. 

 
 
1. Background 
 
1.1 “Change to Keep Succeeding” sets out a proposed new structure for the 

senior management of Kent County Council.  It was presented to meetings of 
the Council’s Cabinet, Scrutiny Board and Cabinet Scrutiny Committee in the 
week commencing 11 October2010. 
 

1.2 With the endorsement of Cabinet, on 15 October Kent County Council started 
a period of formal consultation on the proposed new senior management 
structure with the 25 staff impacted by this proposal.  At the same time a 
wider informal consultation was commenced which is open to all staff and 
partners. The formal and informal consultation period ends on 3 December 
2010. A report will then be made to full Council on 16 December 2010 for a 
revised management structure and plans for the implementation of that 
structure. 

 
1.3 The target is to implement the change in structure, subject to consultation and 

the decision of the County Council on 16 December, by 4 April 2011. 
 
2. Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Personnel Committee is requested to consider these proposals and to 

note that the matters raised by members at this and other member meetings 
to which this matter is to be reported will be fully considered as part of the 
consultative process.   

 
 

Background Documents – None  
 
 
J L Hawkins 
Transformation Project Manager 
ext 8103 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



By:   Paul Carter, Leader of the Council 
   Katherine Kerswell, Group Managing Director   

To:   Cabinet  

Date:   11 October 2010 

Subject:  “Change to keep succeeding”  
The transformation of the Council’s operating framework 

Classification:  Unrestricted

SUMMARY:  This report outlines the work to date on a programme to ensure 
that the Council continues to deliver successfully in the face of 
the most significant changes facing local government in the 
external financial and policy context. It needs to be read in 
conjunction with the draft medium term plan which is being 
launched for consultation - “Bold Steps for Kent” as this is 
proposing the draft new strategic vision for the Council which the 
organisational framework of the Council needs to be able to 
support and deliver upon.  A supplementary and more detailed
report will be circulated prior to the meeting on 11th October due 
to the closing date of the consultation period upon which that 
part of this report needs to rely. As this further report will include 
details of the proposed new structure and information about 
members of staff, its status may be “exempt”. 

1. Introduction 

(i) To reduce the scale of the £156bn public deficit, to repair the nation’s 
public finances and to restore confidence in the national economy, the 
Government has embarked on a radical plan to reduce public spending.  The 
Comprehensive Spending Review will settle the landscape for public service 
funding in late October.  And the following month the Council will receive a 
clearer view of the provisional settlement in its external revenue funding.  This 
will present elected Members and officers of the Council with our biggest 
challenge for a generation.  Over the next four years it is likely that some 
£340m needs to be reduced from the Council’s net revenue budget in order to 
reduce spending and absorb the pressures we face.  But the Council does not 
face this challenge alone – aside from the health service (which has to contain 
its intrinsic growth pressures rather than substantially reduce its base 
budgets) most public agencies in Kent and beyond face similar challenges.
However, unlike most other public agencies, Kent County Council has the 
capabilities to meet these challenges head on.  For when faced with 
challenges of this scale the Council needs to draw on its strengths of 
excellence and innovation. 

(ii) Success is a springboard for future success.  But simply repeating the 
success of the past will not be enough to meet the challenges of the future.

Page 13



Instead the Council needs to make sure that its organisation and services are 
sufficiently agile to lower their costs to meet the coalition government’s 
challenge on public sector costs and the Authority will need to evolve against 
the background of significant changes in other sectors including  Health, 
Education,  while sustaining and improving service outcomes.  Individual 
services need to continue to strive to be ever more cost-effective but the 
overall organisation needs also to embrace an ethic of collective cost-
effectiveness.  This will require a more linked and connected organisation that 
is able to reap the benefits of scale, lower the cost of organisational 
infrastructure, and foster higher levels of overall productivity.

(iii) The Council needs to grasp the opportunities of the Government’s 
decentralisation and localist agenda to revive enterprise and employment 
across Kent.  It needs to help shape the future of education and healthcare 
across Kent to assure ever better life-chances for Kent’s people.  And it needs 
to make sure that its own organisation is sufficiently agile so as to continue to 
lower costs, raise productivity and secure ever better standards of customer 
service.

(iv) The proposed changes to the senior management arrangements to be 
outlined in the following appendix to this report (once consultation has closed) 
will seek to achieve the above and also to make the overall organisation 
leaner and fitter for future purposes. Without doubt, Kent benefits from the 
considerable talents and energies of the Council’s most senior managers.  But 
these benefits are not without significant cost to the taxpayer.  In lowering 
costs and raising productivity, all layers of management need to be examined 
to assure cost-effectiveness and fitness for purpose.  And it is crucial that the 
Council’s senior management arrangements are reviewed to assure Members 
that value for money is secured and that these managers can together drive 
through the essential changes that are required across the County. 

(v) In usual times, top-level organisational changes can help drive change 
throughout organisations.  In times of tightening fiscal constraint they are 
essential to drive even deeper change throughout services and organisations.  
These top-level changes need to be approached in a disciplined and 
corporate manner.  This is why I am proposing a coherent approach that 
secures Council-wide improvements in managerial culture, direction, and co-
ordination.  In particular I am mindful that during a period of major spending 
reductions, the conventional risks to service delivery pale against the potential 
risks of failure when services are being delivered on (an average of) three-
quarters of their current budget.  Controls based on single service or 
professional domains need to be strengthened by newly fashioned corporate 
controls to enable Members to better govern the risks to be faced over the 
next four years. 

(vi) In order to deliver sustainable levels of budget savings over the coming 
four years we will require organisational courage and resilience from 
Members and officers alike.   But these virtues are not of themselves 
sufficient.  The Council needs to ensure that its senior managers are able to 
execute the changes that are required over the coming period.  These senior 
managers need to possess the competencies and capabilities to take the 

Page 14



whole organisation forward and they need to possess the collective 
confidence to take the next bold steps.

2. OUTCOME OF THE INFORMAL CONSULTATION PROCESS

(i) The response to the initial informal consultation has been positive with 
nearly 200 members of staff already offering comment on the design 
principles. The comments are predominately positive in nature to the 
proposals contained within the draft design principles.  Eight meetings were 
also held with managers about these design principles and feedback from 
those meetings is also being incorporated into the final draft 
recommendations for Cabinet.

(ii) All the feedback received will be collated and reported to Cabinet to inform 
their decisions and thinking about the way forward. They will also be used to 
assess the value of the draft design principles that have been circulated and 
the design of the Council’s operating framework that will then flow from these.

3. PROJECT PLAN 

Detail of the sequence and timing of the implementation steps will be provided 
in the following report. The detail of this will need to be based around the final 
recommendations of any proposed changes to the operational framework to 
be made to Cabinet.

4.  PROPOSED NEW ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE.

The supplementary report to follow will cover: 

 Details of the proposed directorates’ structure,  

 The proposed senior posts in each directorate and the business 
activity reporting into these roles. 

 Outline job descriptions for each of the proposed senior roles 

 A list of the current posts that it is proposed are deleted and a list of 
the new posts that it is proposed to create.

 Details of proposals to create a number of new companies to deliver 
Council services.  The detail of these new company models will need 
to also be developed during the consultation period.

5. REVIEW OF REWARD POLICY FOR SENIOR POSTS

(i) Cabinet is asked to agree to a review, by the HayGroup, of the appropriate 
salary levels for the proposed senior posts.  The review will take account of 
the level of responsibility and accountability of each proposed role and 
recommend an appropriate level of salary taking account of internal relativities 
and market rate.  The review will be completed between the 18th October and 
5th November. 

(ii) The current salaries for senior posts are “spot” salaries, i.e.  there is a rate 
for the job and no salary scale.  Some senior posts have a contractual 
entitlement to a performance payment which applies a percentage lump sum 

Page 15



bonus according to the level of performance. However, these payments were 
frozen last financial year and will not be paid for this current financial year. It is 
proposed that senior managers are consulted during the formal consultation 
period on bringing senior performance pay in line with the Total Contribution 
Pay scheme in place for all other Kent County Council staff on the Kent 
Scheme of terms and conditions of employment. This proposal includes 
removing the current contractual bonuses for senior staff.

(iii) At the end of the formal period of consultation, all proposals for any 
changes to the terms and conditions for these proposed senior posts will be 
put to Personnel Committee for consideration before being reported to 
Cabinet on 16th December.

6. PROCESS FOR APPOINTING TO SENIOR POSTS 

(i) Details of the process and timeline for populating the proposed senior level 
posts will be included in the supplementary report.  This could include 
Member panel interviews preceded by assessment centres.  Before any such 
arrangements like this can be agreed to, it will be necessary to follow the 
Council’s process outlined in the Council’s Blue Book of terms and conditions 
of employment.

(ii) This will of course be followed in deciding whether individual senior 
managers are “slotted” (i.e. automatically placed) to the proposed posts in 
the structure.  This means that an individual may be slotted if all the following 
criteria are met: 

 the  job must  be  the  same  grade as before the  re-organisation,

 there  must  be  the  same  number of jobs (or more) as job holders

 the  job is deemed 75% the  same  type  of work in term  of job 
accountabilities, activities  and broad objectives

(iii) Then there is no recruitment process either internal or external and the 
employee whose job has been altered by this process is slotted in to the new 
job.  This can only be assessed at the end of the consultation process and 
following the full Council’s final decision on the proposals. 

4. CORE VALUES AND BEHAVIOURS 

(i) This change programme is aimed at enabling Kent County Council to alter 
the way it operates so that it can meet the new challenges it is facing.  It 
cannot therefore be solely about the organisation structure, but must also lead 
to a new organisational culture.

(ii) It is therefore proposed that an external provider is procured to engage 
with staff across the Authority and with Members and senior managers to 
design a set of draft values and behaviours.  This process when shared with 
staff has been warmly welcomed as a means of being involved in shaping the 
Council and ensuring we can deliver as well in the future as we have in the 
past.

Page 16



(iii) These values and behaviours will be put forward for discussion and 
agreement at the County Council meeting on 16th December.
Once agreed these values and behaviours will drive all aspects of the 
Authority’s HR strategy.

5. EXIT MANAGEMENT PROCESS FOR SENIOR POSTS 

It is suggested that a voluntary redundancy process is introduced, to be 
offered to any of the senior managers affected by the restructure proposals at 
the start of the process. Details of the process for this together with proposals 
around notice periods, appeals against decisions made and alternative job 
search support will follow in the supplementary report. 

6. RECRUITMENT TO ANY POSSIBLE VACANT SENIOR POSTS 

It is critical to the stability of the organisation, the continuation of excellent 
service delivery and the success of the many significant change programmes 
being undertaken that any senior posts left vacant are filled as soon as 
possible.  The standard Kent County Council personnel process will be 
applied to any post that is not filled by a priority candidate, and the post will be 
advertised to internal staff with external candidates being sought 
contemporaneously if required. This has worked very successfully in the past 
and it is hoped that if such a circumstance arises of a vacant post needing to 
be filled, internal staff are able to come forward and be assessed for the 
vacancy.

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

(i) The Council is facing significant financial challenge more so than at any 
time in its past by virtue of the economic conditions of the country and the 
forthcoming comprehensive spending review that is proposing to reduce 
Council budgets between 25% to 40%. Officer have been working on a series 
of options to increase the efficient working of the Council and to review ways 
in which services can be delivered to reduce costs whilst maintaining quality 
to meet this level of reduction. 

(ii) The management costs and organisational structure costs of the authority 
must be examined along with all other costs within the Council. This process 
will naturally contribute to the savings required.  Details of the proposed 
savings will be available once consultation has closed and a final draft 
proposal for Cabinet can be created.  Other savings proposals that will affect 
staffing arrangements in the Council will undoubtedly follow in the budget 
proposals that will be presented to Members later this Autumn / Winter. 
Effective corporate programme management will ensure alignment and 
enable any possible double counting to be dealt with. 

8. RISKS 

(i) It is important early on in this work to highlight a number of possible risks 
facing the Council from these proposals. A fuller risk register will be supplied 

Page 17



following the closure of consultation and the draft proposals being able to be 
concluded.

(ii) This proposed change process is happening at a very congested time for 
this Council. The Council along with all others in the public sector is facing 
unprecedented external policy and financial changes. Local people’s 
expectations from services and what they are willing to pay for them is also 
changing fundamentally.  We are in the process of discussing with Members 
and the Scrutiny committees the Council’s new medium term plan “Bold Steps 
for Kent” which is considering a brand new focus and way of working for the 
next four years. The draft medium term plan is also on this Cabinet’s agenda 
for approval for consultation.

(iii) It is imperative that the process of transforming our operational framework, 
preparation of the Council’s medium term financial plan and the development 
of the medium term plan dovetail and absolutely align. They are all intricately 
related and the individual success of each of them relies upon the success of 
all.

(iv) The Group Managing Director’s role is to ensure the co-ordination of such 
major developments and also to plan and manage the risk of non-alignment 
by working very closely with key officers in the Council. Therefore these 
programmes will be programme managed through the Group Managing 
Director’s office and the Corporate Management Team will be the programme 
board for these activities. The programme office resource is in place to 
support this.

(v) It is important to be clear about the need to ensure accurate financial 
control is maintained throughout this change. This risk will be strongly 
mitigated by the programme management approach, the corporate 
management team’s role as the programme board and very strong input from 
the financial services division into the programme team that is already in 
place.

(vi) In addition to the risk being mitigated by the effective programme 
management resource, another possible mitigation of this risk could be to 
delay one or several of these programmes that are occurring at the same 
time.

(vii) “Bold Steps for Kent” the new medium term plan, has to take place in this 
timeframe. Our current medium term plan “Towards 2010” has concluded and 
this Council needs to be clearly focused on dealing with the new policy 
challenges facing us and being able to plan for and deliver Members’ 
ambitions for the next four years.

(viii) The transformation of the Council’s operating framework is intrinsically 
linked to making certain that the Council can deliver “Bold Steps for Kent” the 
new medium term plan, which requires of us a new integrated delivery model 
and new ways of working.

Page 18



(ix) The new medium term plan “Bold Steps for Kent” also supports and 
enables many of the proposals currently being developed to deliver the new 
medium term financial plan and the estimated £340m of reductions that the 
Council may have to find over the next four years.  

(x) The medium term financial plan clearly has to take place at this time to 
deliver the Council’s budget and respond to the outcome of the 
comprehensive spending review on the 20th October. The changes proposed 
by this report will enable many of the financial reductions that will be 
necessary to be made.

(xi) If we are to avoid a period of managed decline we need to deliver our 
services at lower cost and in different ways. If we halt the organisational 
change that this report contemplates we face a different risk of “salami slicing” 
of services and being unable to deliver the quality of service that Kent is 
renowned for. It is important that the costs of how this organisation delivers its 
services are considered and challenged as much as the costs of what we 
deliver in actual services.  

(xii) Kent has a national reputation for being able to seize opportunities at the 
right moment. If we fail to align these three programmes effectively and not 
maximise the support they give to each other and manage the pace of each 
through a co-ordinated and resourced programme office we run the different 
risk of losing the benefits of these processes and prolonging the period of 
turbulence for this organisation.

(xiii) Another two risks of all these programmes and in particular the subject of 
this report are the risks to morale and leadership capacity. Members will be 
able to see from the responses from staff to this informal consultation (those 
received to date) that they talk about the uncertainty that they all feel. There 
are also comments welcoming the fact they we are facing up to this and want 
to involve staff in how we deal with the situation. There has also been very 
positive support expressed in the managers meetings about taking up this 
difficult situation with their teams to help manage the transition and deal with 
the uncertainty that the external policy changes and financial environment are 
driving.

(xiv) As our services have to be reduced and the policy challenges we are 
facing and also wish to create ourselves are changing, we need to examine 
the most senior posts that we have in this organisation. We must ensure that 
they along with all the other roles and services are fit for purpose and that the 
overhead costs that they represent are appropriate.  The period between our 
current operational framework to any different framework that Members agree 
will need to be very carefully managed through a transition programme to 
ensure effective capacity is available to keep the programmes of the Council 
going.

(xv) All areas of this Council are being reviewed and challenged as part of the 
process to find the £340m reductions needed over the next four years. There 
is the risk that if we fail to examine the costs of our most senior management 
structures and whether they are designed in the most effective way for our 

Page 19



future, we will give a contradictory message to the rest of our staff about the 
different values placed upon roles at different levels in the Council. That is 
clearly not part of the values of this authority and it is important that we must 
be seen to be demonstrating explicitly the equity and fairness of the approach 
that we take to examining all costs at all levels and in all services.  

(xvi) This Council can be proud of the fact that we have a strong pool of 
resilient and steadfast managers who have met such challenges as this in the 
past and have managed the transition and uncertainty that is necessary in 
such a turbulent period. 

(xvii) Cabinet must also consider in assessing the options that this report will 
place before them a slightly different type of risk. The risks above can be 
described as a type 1 risk.  The risk of something going wrong that can then 
either be mitigated or put right.

(xviii)here is also the type 2 risk that needs to be considered. This is the risk 
of not doing something, that if you had done it – it would have delivered the 
future you are seeking to achieve.

(xix)The consequence of a type 2 risk in relation to this report and the 
proposals that are to follow; is that changing the organisation at a later date 
when the opportunities we are seeking to take advantage of have moved on 
could be much more costly and damaging for us. The external demands of the 
policy changes from the new government and the financial reductions we will 
have to find show no sign of slowing down or reducing, indeed they seem to 
be accelerating. Cabinet will need to consider the cost of change now in all its 
dimensions or a possible much increased cost at a later date.

9.RECOMMENDATION

Cabinet is asked to note and agree as appropriate the proposals put forward 
in this report and to note that further recommendations will follow in the 
supplementary report.

Note: This report will also be discussed at a meeting of the Scrutiny Board 
which is taking place on11 October on the rising of the Cabinet meeting and a 
meeting of the Cabinet Scrutiny Committee taking place on Friday 15 October 
2010

Background documents:  The First Bold step Informal consultation 
document

Katherine Kerswell     Amanda Beer 
4000        4136   

Page 20



Change to keep succeeding  Appendix 1 

The challenges facing us 

1. As described in the Cabinet report already circulated, KCC is facing; along 
with all other local authorities and public service agencies, an unprecedented 
level of and pace of change.  The challenges facing the Council arise from 
three main sources.

 From the changing patterns of needs and demands from service users 
and local residents.  

 From the financial reductions that are being applied to public spending 
generally.

 From the fundamental changes planned by the Government to public 
sector policy and our own new policy ambitions in the draft medium 
term plan “Bold Steps for Kent”. 

2. The needs and demands of our public do change and are changing rapidly 
and if we are not equally nimble in responding to them we can appear rigid or 
fixed in terms of the style of our service delivery and our ability to change our 
cost base.  The demographic changes we are facing in Kent are significant 
enough on their own but they accompany further social and economic change 
as well as the fast paced changes in local peoples’ use of media technologies 
such as Face Book campaigns, electronic petitions and the widespread use of 
direct contact email.   KCC has embraced the transparency agenda and this 
will yield further avenues for media technologies to engage with the delivery 
of our services and our functioning as a Council.  

The demographic challenge 

3. Over the next eighteen years the total population in Kent is predicted to 
increase by 18%, which is higher than the growth predicted for the whole of 
England and the South East.  The particular population growth trend that we 
need to be mindful of in thinking and planning for our future is the growth of 
the over 85 population. At one level this should be absolutely celebrated as 
many more people are living past this age than ever before.  

4. Over the next eighteen years the percentage of over 85’s in our total Kent 
population will increase by 99% from a population of 38,700 to 77,400. (ONS 
– 2008 –based sub national population projections)  In contrast our younger 
population group of 4-10 year olds only increases by 12% between 2009 and 
2019 and then remains constant after that.  

5. This clearly has major issues for a wide range of services we provide and 
certainly is not restricted in its impact to adult social care services. The 
principle that its not just adding years to life but life to those years means 
each of our services must think very hard how we address this significant 
increase in our over 85 population.  

Page 21



The service delivery challenge 

6. Essentially, future needs and demands for public services will differ in 
character from those of today – they will not simply differ in the level or 
amount we deliver.  People want more appropriate, more flexible, more 
personally tailored and responsive services.  They want more self-organised 
services and they expect, wherever practicable, for services to be made 
available online.  How people privately consume goods and services will 
continue to influence their expectations of our services.     

7. In order for us to be able to meet our future challenges, KCC, local 
government, indeed all public institutions and agencies will need to be more 
agile in how they organise themselves.  The stress will rightly be on 
redesigning services, on reshaping the systems of service delivery, and on 
revising “service user pathways” such as in care for elderly people with 
specific conditions, and really maximising the use of the latent potential of our 
Gateways.  But to do so will require us to be much more flexible in how we 
finance our services and how we shape our functions and activities. We must 
also be very clear this does not simply apply to how we work on our own, but 
increasingly we will be working with our partners and we will need to be 
flexible and agile in the many differing types of relationships that will emerge. 

8. Eight briefing sessions with 219 of the Council’s managers have taken place 
over the informal consultation period. We have discussed the changes that 
the Council will have to face over the next period.  We have also discussed 
between us the new policies that the Coalition Government is introducing. 
Members will see from Appendix 2, a summary of the responses from those 
sessions.  One of the very consistent themes raised in those discussions was 
the impact from the level of financial reductions that we have to plan for and 
contemplate ahead of the 20th October CSR announcement and also the 
effects that this could have on local jobs and services in our county.  

The financial challenge 

9. The Government have adopted a broad plan for public sector reductions. The 
current plan is for 85 per cent of the planned reductions to come from public 
spending cuts.  The period of private sector recession of 2008-9 is being 
followed by period of public sector retrenchment from 2010-14.   

10. At the very broadest level this presents a background of considerable 
uncertainty for KCC and its public sector partners in the county, all of whom 
face the challenge of planning for this future. Nationally local government has 
had to deliver efficiencies of around 3% a year. As an excellent authority KCC 
has delivered above that level at around 4% a year. This has required 
significant focus and activity by the organisation and Members. The level of 
reductions we are expecting from the CSR announcement translates roughly 
into reducing our spending by up to eight per cent each year for the coming 
three years.

11. Efficiencies of three or four per cent can be planned for by way of productivity 
improvements and the like.  Ongoing cumulative reductions of eight per cent 
are significantly much more demanding – to determine, and then to 
implement.

12. They require some bold steps to be taken.    

Page 22



The policy challenge 

13. The Coalition Government has published an ambitious agenda for 
fundamentally altering the nature of public service in this country. It has 
resonated very closely with the future vision for public services that the 
County Council set out in the Leader’s paper “Bold Steps for Radical Reform” 
in January 2010.

14. Kent’s history of innovation, delivery of quality services and strong 
relationships with Whitehall places us in an enviable position to develop many 
of these new ideas and bring additional advantages for example through 
investment in new service models, by a government willing to see its ideas 
being tested and trialled.  All throughout the meetings with managers their 
willingness to try new ideas and pride in the history of innovation and 
entrepreneurialism of their Council was very evident and staff are getting 
ready to step up to these new challenges.  

15. The fact that we have two externally driven major changes of a policy 
framework and a financial framework is significant. We must avoid the 
pressure of such a reduction in our funding to feel that the future has to be 
one of managed decline and a timid future then emerging.  

16. This point was raised in the consultation process and many staff opted for 
creating a new future and not just face an endless “salami slicing” of Council 
services. Their responses are very true to a core aspect of KCC – that of 
facing up to our future and changing it for the better. That characteristic will 
be essential for us going forward and managing these challenges. We need 
to be able to take advantage of the new ideas that are emerging about public 
services and really offer a different future for public services in Kent. These 
draft structure proposals aim to enable that capacity to be in place as soon as 
possible and to aid the financial reductions we must face. 

17. The structure charts that are included with this report for Cabinet to approve 
as a consultation draft for the organisation and our partners, attempt to 
capture the challenges we face and to enable the County Council to fully 
respond to the new opportunities in the changing financial and policy 
environment both from our own draft medium term plan “Bold Steps for Kent” 
and the Government’s radical agenda.   

18. A series of design principles were developed and circulated in a leaflet “The 
first bold step” to all staff to create a debate about what was facing us as a 
Council and whether we are currently organised and operating in a way that 
enables us to deal with that future in the most effective manner.  The 
summary of the comments received back from staff is attached at Appendix 2. 
There are a wide range of comments, both critical and supportive and I have 
responded to each, full copies of which are available in the Member’s 
Information Point as well as to each Member of Cabinet and the Scrutiny 
Boards overseeing this report.  Overall there is a positive sense of energy and 
desire to change some of the ways that we operate as an organisation, most 
notably on how we connect internally and operate as one organisation. Many 

Page 23



of the design principles were supported and they have shaped the draft 
structure proposals placed before Members today.  

19. The changing nature of the delivery of public services will require KCC to 
think very carefully about the current way it is organised. As recently as 
Sunday 3rd October the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government – Eric Pickles MP made a statement of how local government 
must end duplication and increase its productivity, He urged us all to share 
more services between Councils and between other public agencies. The 
proposals in this restructure rise to the challenge that the Secretary of State 
has thrown out to all local government in ensuring we are joining ourselves up 
as an organisation and making the use of our internal systems much more 
productive. This will enable an easier connection to be made as one Council 
with partners when needing to join up services together. 

20. It will also enable us to create new forms of service delivery vehicles with our 
key partners in Schools and with GP’s. It will also help us to deliver more 
effectively in localities, joining decision making with our other partners in 
District Councils, the Police and Health and other local organisations to really 
tailor our services to the particular needs of that locality. The intention is that 
this locality approach does not stop at the district level but can explore closer 
delivery with our parish and town Councils and in local neighbourhoods. 

21. All of this is exactly in line with the Secretary of State’s determined vision for 
the future of local government delivery. On coming into office the Secretary of 
State declared his priorities to be; 

“localism, localism and localism – but not necessarily in that order”.

22. In the face of that drive to join up and also increase our productivity; how we 
internally organise our business support resources also needs to alter so that 
we are connected and integrated as one organisation. We can then become 
much more efficient and productive in how we use those systems and 
processes – a “one pass” approach and (leading to much more effective and 
coherent ) can then effectively integrate with others. 

Explanation of the structure in general and process for staff impacted 

23. In addition to the text below which describes the main themes that the 
proposed structure is attempting to deliver, it may be helpful for Members to 
look at the structure diagrams. These are portrayed in two ways, a traditional 
organogram of posts and reporting lines showing the whole Council and a 
more detailed picture outlining the top two tiers of management posts in each 
proposed Directorate that are directly impacted by this proposed restructure 
consultation. The array of functions that are shown (in the grid boxes) for that 
Directorate then would lie within their areas of responsibility if those senior 
posts at first and second tier were approved. Please note these are not all 
current service teams but also denote capacity and functions that will need to 
be created. 

24. Please also note that the areas described as functions and any staff or 
managers within those are not affected at this stage by any of these 
restructure proposals. If at a later stage further re-organisation is required 
then that will be dealt with, within the terms and conditions of the KCC’s 
employment policies. Appendix 5 of this report lists the current senior  

Page 24



management posts that are directly impacted by these draft structure 
 proposals. It needs to be explicitly understood that these are the only posts
 which are affected by this process.  

25. Those post holders are not placed formally at risk by this consultation 
process. That can only happen if and when Members take their final decision 
on the proposals at the Full Council meeting on the 16th December. It will only 
be at that stage that it will be possible to determine whether any of the current 
posts have altered significantly and therefore whether any of the post holders 
are then formally at risk. The Director of Personnel and Development and the 
Group Managing Director will be writing formally to all senior officers directly 
impacted by this process on Friday 15th October following the outcome of 
Cabinet Scrutiny Board. Formal consultation can only begin following the 
outcome of that meeting.  However all senior staff are being briefed on the 
morning of the 11th October so that they are fully aware of the draft structure 
proposals and can ask any additional information about the process that they 
require. The Corporate Management Team have also all been informed of 
these proposals on Friday 8th October, either in a meeting or by receiving 
copies of the proposals due to other meetings preventing them attending. 

26. It is very important to be aware that the posts at the second tier level do not
all carry the same level of seniority, size of job or price tag for that job. The 
inclusion of director level posts in this way represents the first visible sign of 
implementing the design principle of a flatter structure leading to fewer 
management tiers between the top of the organisation and the front line.   

27. There are a number of posts that have been designated “director” that have a 
very singular focus such as waste and procurement. These have been 
included in the most senior tiers of management as they are such significant 
areas for the Council and to give them a very clear focus and priority.    

28. By virtue of the design principle that was endorsed by staff, this structure is 
aiming to connect all business support services together in one Directorate 
serving the whole of the Council.  There are two posts in that Directorate 
however that are also members of the Corporate Management Team with the 
same first tier status as the Corporate Directors leading Directorates. These 
two posts are Corporate Director Finance and Corporate Director Human 
Resources.  The reporting lines and day to day operational activity of these 
two divisions need to be part of the Business Strategy and Support 
Directorate but they play such a significant role in the life of this authority that 
they will be formally members of the Corporate Management team and 
enable to enact their strategic role in full. It is also critical for the statutory role 
of the Chief Finance Officer post that it is a member of the Corporate 
Management Team in order to be able to fulfil its duty.  

29. The Corporate Director Business Strategy and Support has also been 
designated as Deputy Managing Director.  This will ensure continuity of 
organisational leadership in the absence of the Managing Director. The 
current job title of the post of Group Managing Director is proposed to be 
altered through this process to Managing Director. This is now possible due to 
the other Directorates being re-titled away from being Managing Directors in 
their own right and also denoting the one Council – one organisation design 
principle.

Page 25



Detail regarding the role of the Corporate Director 

30. The post of Corporate Director denotes the most senior tier – first tier of 
management in the authority and membership of the Corporate Management 
Team. The Corporate Director along with all other first and second tier posts 
will share identical responsibilities in their job descriptions in regard to 
overarching responsibilities for being focused on; our customers, working with 
partners, leading services, leading people, performance, finance and risk. In 
addition they will also have the specialist responsibilities in line with their 
Directorate’s functions. 

31. The Corporate Director is the overall managerial head of the Directorate and 
as such has a key responsibility for ensuring its smooth running. The post has 
to have a strong relationship with the business partners who will support the 
operation of that Directorate. The Corporate Director is also a strategic policy 
client initiating the development of major policy via the Director of Business 
Strategy and the resources in that division and in close liaison with their 
Cabinet portfolio holder. The design of the business strategy division is to 
ensure a holistic approach can be taken to policy and strategy development in 
the Council and that the staff working there are able to cross fertilise ideas 
and develop their thinking in the broadest context of the direction of the 
Council as a whole.  

32. Corporate Directors will still as happens currently take the lead on a number 
of cross cutting issues and themes that are critical for the smooth running of 
the organisation. Health and Safety and Equalities are two very obvious areas 
of work that both require the most senior posts in the authority to champion.  

33. Those Directors and Corporate Directors who have responsibility for the 
business partner relationships for their particular functions with other 
Directorates are also designated Heads of Profession”. This covers finance, 
human resources, property, IT, communications, consultation and 
engagement The Director of Governance and Assurance is also the Head of 
Profession for legal services. 

34. The Chief Officer Group has been redesigned over these last three months 
into a Corporate Management team (CMT) and its new way of working is in 
line with the design principles. It will be a key element in ensuring effective 
corporate working and that new silos don’t replace the old.  

35. CMT’s role is primarily in two areas. One is giving advice to Members. In 
large-scale multi-functional local government there are, inevitably, competing 
claims for resources, assets, facilities, services and political attention.  In this 
context one key feature of corporate management is the requirement to 
advise Members on how best to balance differing interests and how best to 
weigh competing claims.  Members may require a plurality of views but these 
must first be considered through a corporate lens – policy, service and 
managerial issues need to be considered in the round and not simply through 
the prism of one singular service domain. This if not counteracted can be a 
major driver of silo behaviour.  

36. The other is managerial leadership. The Council’s services, functions and 
activities are all directed to improve outcomes for the people of Kent.  The 

Page 26



Council’s top team are collectively responsible for the coherence of 
management direction and controls – operationally, strategically and 
corporately.  The team is responsible for overall results, the stewardship of 
resources, the Council’s corporate reputation and its effective risk 
management (results, resources, reputation and risks). 

37. The Chief Officer Group whilst it has clearly undertaken a number of the 
above roles in the past has not operated as explicitly as the new terms of 
reference of the Corporate Management Team describe. This new Corporate 
Management Team role is critical for the smooth operation of the new 
operating framework of the authority.  

38. In the face of all our challenges the Corporate Management Team must 
absolutely share one responsibility that of explicitly challenging all our areas 
of service and practice to ensure we are truly delivering the best we can.  This 
is not just a question of ensuring that the things we are doing are being done 
in the right way. But also in the light of the significant financial, and policy 
changes both nationally and of our own volition that we are now doing the 
right things.  

Delivering the new vision of the authority – delivering the design principles 

39. It may seem odd in a report to Members that is primarily about draft structure 
proposals to say that the future operating framework cannot just be about a 
structure. Throughout the consultation and in the manager’s meetings, we 
have discussed a way of looking at the organisation through a number of 
areas, one of which is the structure.  We have also discussed the style of the 
Council – how it works, the systems we use, our shared values, the skills, our 
staff need, etc. Staff strongly responded to this and have endorsed that we 
need to develop other aspects of the way we work and organise ourselves 
and not solely focus on the structural arrangements of services and reporting 
lines as important as they are.   

40. The earlier report that was circulated to Cabinet refers to the development of 
a new set of shared values and workplace behaviours that will be designed by 
staff for staff. This too has been welcomed in the feedback as a means of 
engaging the Council and making the design principles really come to life in 
our day to day interactions.  

41. The Council will shortly be consulting on its draft medium term plan “Bold 
Steps for Kent”. The outline of this was captured in the first design principle 
which shared with staff the three proposed ambitions for Kent; to grow the 
economy, tackle disadvantage and put citizens in control. The way we will 
work to deliver that, will be through operating as one Council and very much 
focused on the localities of Kent with our partners. The role of KCC in 
speaking out for the whole of Kent and its needs is also captured in this 
principle and the need for us to stand up for our county and ensure our needs 
and demands are clearly understood.  

42. The structure proposals have been developed in line with the thinking in “Bold 
Steps for Kent” and will strongly support the new ambitions and provide 
capacity to implement the direction of travel for public services in KCC and 
the whole of Kent that is outlined in there.

Page 27



43. Draft proposals for consultation on the future structure of Kent County 
Council

44. It is proposed to create five Directorates – Business Strategy and Support, 
Customer and Communities, Enterprise, Families, Health and Social Care 
and Education, Learning and Skills. These Directorates aim to deliver the 
design principles that have been consulted upon with staff. (see Appendix 2)  

45. They are also intended to reflect the three draft Council and county wide 
ambitions contained within the draft medium term plan “Bold Steps for Kent”. 
These are 1. Growing the Economy – Enterprise Directorate, 2. Tackling 
Disadvantage – Education, Learning and Skills Directorate and Families, 
Health and Social Care Directorate and 3. Putting the Citizen in Control – 
Customer and Communities Directorate.  The Business Strategy and Support 
Directorate contains the policy development and intelligence function for the 
whole Council and contributes overall to the whole plan. These descriptions 
are not intended to suggest that the other Directorates would not contribute to 
any of the other ambitions but to show a correlation between their focus and 
the Council’s ambitions for the future.  

46. One of the design principles was to enable the Council to work as a more 
integrated organisation rather than as a series of federated services. This is 
an essential shift if we are going to be able to focus completely on the 
delivery of “Bold Steps for Kent” and those three overarching ambitions. It is 
also an essential shift if we are to be able to channel our delivery into a series 
of locality delivery boards and the integrated frontline of the authority to meet 
the pattern of service delivery that local people require at the price we can 
afford.

Education, Learning and Skills Directorate 

47. Overall the Directorate will focus upon ensuring strategic leadership and the 
County Council’s championship of high quality learning opportunities from 
early years through to 19+. It will make sure that there is genuine choice and 
diversity in provision to meet the needs and aspirations of all children, young 
people, and parents, with information advice and guidance so they can make 
the appropriate choices. It will coordinate and facilitate collaborative working 
amongst schools, keeping Kent at the leading edge of educational practice. It 
will also ensure the coordination of admissions, home to school transport, 
special needs education and link closely with the children's services team to 
ensure every child is attending and flourishing in school. Finally it will be 
keeping a very close eye on standards and achievement, making sure 
support and intervention is there when required. 

48. Capacity has been created within the proposed Directorate to develop with 
our community of Schools, Head teachers and Governors, a number of  new 
vehicles to provide them with continuing professional development, school 
improvement, curriculum development and a really strong  range of school 
support services which many of them access currently.  It is envisaged that 
this type of new vehicle will enable us to support both the thinking of the new 
Department of Education in the greater independence they wish to see 
schools having and also to continue to support the large number of Kent 
schools who currently value a very close working relationship with us. This 
model as a “best of both worlds” approach has been broadly welcomed in 
recent meetings with head teachers.  

Page 28



49. The proposed Directorate also signals a move to recognise the new policy 
thinking within the Department of Education on the “every child matters” 
policy framework of integrated children’s services.  There have been 
significant advantages gained from this policy framework. There have 
however been some losses mostly in the relationship with adult social 
services in terms of being able to conduct a real integrated assessment and 
develop properly integrated continuous care pathways for clients.  The 
proposed structure tries to rebalance our service delivery models so that we 
are able to regain these elements and also retain the excellent work that has 
been done to date in this county on the integration of children’s services.  

50. The current Children, Families and Education Directorate has re-organised 
itself to ensure in the twelve district areas of our county, there are integrated 
children’s services for school support, children’s social care services and 
preventative services such as children’s centres. These operate with a series 
of twelve locality boards and an over arching Kent Children’s Trust Board. 
This is a valuable forerunner of the thinking that is being proposed within the 
draft medium term plan “Bold Steps for Kent” and the 12 locality district 
boards and it will be essential to learn from its experiences in the 
development of the model being proposed for the whole Council. 

51. The proposal in this draft structure is to support and maintain those links in 
the localities of integrated children’s services but to designate the line 
management “home” of targeted Children’s services as the proposed 
Families, Health and Social Care Directorate.  Throughout the proposed 
consultation period there will be a number of bills and white papers published 
by the Government. Amongst them is expected to be an Education White 
Paper. This will give us further guidance on what the residual statutory duties 
of the local authority are likely to be in regard to education and may also 
discuss what the future statutory role of the Director of Children’s Services 
could be.  The consultation period should allow enough time to take into 
account any proposed changes and give us the flexibility to respond.  

52. Bearing in mind the current statutory requirements, it is proposed that a 
protocol be produced to ensure that the accountability of the Director of 
Children’s Services is properly maintained and not fettered by a different 
reporting line arrangement. The reporting links to the statutory role of the 
Lead Member must also be maintained pending any national review. The 
current statutory guidance on the role of the DCS does not insist that there 
has to be a direct reporting relationship of these posts.  

Families, Health and Social Care Directorate 

53. This Directorate will focus on the continued delivery of high quality adult 
social care services; develop a new model of integrated delivery of social care 
with our health partners and others, develop the new role of Public Health and 
work to ensure the Council is able to support the GP practices in the county 
facing their new agenda as commissioners. The Directorate will maintain the 
high standards of care practice for children and continue to champion 
safeguarding for adults and children throughout all the Council’s services. It 
will also seek to deliver new models of more integrated assessment and care 
pathways with the addition of the children’s services division and 
commissioning, assurance and delivery of services for other vulnerable 
groups.

Page 29



54. The draft structure proposals for this Directorate show this as the new home 
of the Director of Children’s Services and the line management arrangements 
and the locality connections to integrated children’s services as described 
above. It must be emphasised that the dotted line is to represent a real living 
relationship of the services across these two Directorates. 

55. This Directorate is also home to the significant range of adult social care 
services that are provided by the Council, both their commissioning and 
provision. The future of direct delivery and possible integration with health 
services or with other models of delivery are very current. The role of 
Transition Director in this Directorate is to enable the future model of service 
delivery to be developed for Members and also to ensure the new relationship 
with the GP’s and their responsibilities under the Health White Paper can be 
properly developed.

56. Safeguarding is a critical issue for all services in the Council but most notably 
for adult and children’s social care services. Whilst the personal responsibility 
and activities within the different social care teams – adults and children’s, will 
continue unaffected, there is potential to draw together the support services to 
the safeguarding boards, training and promotion and the commissioning of 
and oversight of any investigative work that may need to happen. Whilst 
adults and children’s safeguarding practice have a different legal basis, there 
are many similarities within the culture, approach and core workload of these 
different teams to promote and ensure safeguarding is a live issue for all our 
staff. The function would also be expected to look across the Council and 
raise the profile of safeguarding for everyone. 

57. In this Directorate there is also the role of the joint post of the Director of 
Public Health. The post holder at present is shared between the two primary 
care trusts in Kent – Eastern and Coastal Kent and West Kent and ourselves. 
We share a third of the costs of the post each.   The national changes 
proposed by the Department of Health are as wide ranging as the national 
policy changes to education. It is certainly one of the most significant policy 
proposals of this Government.  Health is being redesigned to move the 
majority of commissioning decisions into GP practices, new roles for local 
authorities are being developed and new roles at a national commissioning 
body level are also being developed.  

58. Kent County Council has a proud history of involvement with health and 
pioneered the development of Health Watch which has been mirrored by the 
Government in their new policy framework.   We will need to see the Public 
Health White Paper when it is published and the further detail that will emerge 
from the Department of Health over the next few months as to how this role 
will develop. There are very likely to be many changes in this area that we will 
need to discuss with Members as and when the picture becomes clear.  

59. Within this Directorate there is also a new division headed by a Director of 
Supporting People. This division is intended to house significant 
commissioning activity to vulnerable groups, via the supporting people 
commissioning body we have, for children’s health and for children’s social 
care.  There is also the critical role closely related to commissioning as a 
function, that of quality assuring the delivery of social care.  The safeguarding 
new function has been referred to above and will be placed here. Youth 
Offending and KDAAT whilst needing to retain their existing links to the 

Page 30



community safety function will focus on delivering particular support to the 
vulnerable people in need of those particular services.  

Enterprise Directorate 

60. Overall this Directorate focuses upon three key areas, the delivery of the 
regeneration of our county, the planning and environment issues that are 
associated with that and the delivery of major contracts that affect every 
single resident in Kent.  

61. Growing the Economy is one of the three proposed Council and county wide 
ambitions in the new draft medium term plan “Bold Steps for Kent”. The 
County Council has made a bid with Essex to create a Local Enterprise 
Partnership to really drive the growth of the two very significant economies in 
the south east. The Government has announced the £1bn Growth Fund that 
we will seek to access for significant work in the LEP. We will continue to 
invest monies ourselves as a Council in growth activity.  We have also made 
a very strong bid to HM Treasury as part of a place based budgeting bid for 
the nationally controlled funding stream that is spent within our county.  

62. This bid if successful will enable us to decide how that money is most 
effectively spent. The delivery of this integrated funding stream will be from 
this Directorate. The regeneration policy development will be led from the 
Business Strategy and Support Directorate as part of the overall integrated 
policy unit and will commission this work in the Enterprise Directorate in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member and Corporate Director for Enterprise. 
This integrated approach to policy development supports the concept of the 
“one Council” that ensures that any major initiative is thought through in the 
context of the whole Council and not just a part. 

63. Our highways and waste disposal services are essential in maintaining the 
quality of life in our county and the smooth passage of all our residents in 
their daily lives. These are mostly “invisible” services in that their actual 
provision by the County Council is often invisible to the residents that use 
them day to day but they are critical and fundamental services to all of us.  
They become instantly visible and a very high priority if things are not working 
smoothly. The focus of these two divisions – Highways and Waste will be to 
ensure just that and that we take forward the very exciting waste agenda that 
we have embarked upon with our District and Borough colleagues.  

64. The Directorate also houses the development control and environment 
activity of the Council, our keen focus on the rural parts of our county and of 
course our coastline.  The quality of the environment of Kent is very precious 
to this Council and the very many people visiting and living in the county and 
this will be a key role for this Directorate to be able to continue to develop 
partnerships and invest in these services at a time of real financial pressure 
for the authority. 

65. The Directorate will also newly house the re-purposed commercial services 
operation we have but it will be housed with other services where the we 
believe there could be a significant advantage if those services could be 
developed in a different way. 

66. This should not be presumed to be on the same business model as our 
current very successful commercial services division that has operated to 

Page 31



date. The Coalition Government is encouraging the public sector to develop a 
wide range of new and alternative vehicles for public service delivery – social 
enterprises, employee buy outs, mutuals, joint ventures etc, which will all 
contribute strongly to local economic growth and enterprise.  This division will 
help the Council to explore these models. As the Prime Minister said on 6th

October

“The countries that succeed will be those that find new ways of doing things, 
new ways of harnessing the common good, better alternatives to the old-
fashioned state. I am saying to the people who work in our public services - set 
up as a co-operative, be your own boss, do things your way. I am saying to 
business, faith groups, charities, social enterprises – come in and provide a 
great service.” 

67. This division will also house the project resources for the major regeneration 
activity that may continue to be invested in by us and our partners. As 
explained above it will also provide the engine room for any implementation of 
combined expenditure if we are successful in our Place Based Budgeting 
proposal on regeneration monies spent in Kent. We will learn more about that 
after the 20th October and the spending review announcement.

Customer and Communities Directorate 

68. The purpose of this Directorate can be summed up very simply as owning the 
“front line” for the whole Council. It could be thought of as a “Directorate of the 
front line” – and by that we mean both the physical buildings, the call centre 
and web access.  The Council has made a significant investment over recent 
years in the Gateways – jointly run with our partners. This has been nationally 
recognised as excellent practice.  This Directorate will have a clear focus on 
developing the Gateway model across all our public access buildings and re-
engineering services to take full advantage of delivering an integrated front 
line to the public and delivering savings from that.  

69. The Directorate will also be home to a range of services that share a similar 
characteristic in that the public choose to use them – i.e. “they come to us”. In 
addition to the Gateways, there are the registrar service, libraries and our 
parks. It will also house key strategic services for the Council from community 
safety and public protection to adult learning, skills and youth services. These 
services have a particular significance in relation to the Kent economy. 

70. This will require a significant change programme to re-engineer services so 
that the reality of the frontline service can really fulfil the vision of the Gateway 
model. There are also a number of new approaches to service delivery that 
will need development. The draft medium term plan “Bold Steps for Kent” 
contains a proposal to create locality delivery boards. The intention is to pilot 
a number of these next April.  A resource will need to be created to develop 
these pilots. We have also made two further place based budgeting bids one 
building on the leading edge work on the Margate Task Force and another 
building on earlier work around offender management that paved the way for 
many of the Total Place pilots that then took place nationally. If these bids are 
successful then the activity will be driven from here. This division is also home 
to KCC’s commitment to create the Big Society. “Bold Steps for Kent” raises a 
number of ideas such as a Big Society Bank, working more closely with 
volunteers etc, and all this work will be developed from here.  

Page 32



71. The Directorate will also be home to the new integrated division of 
Communications, Consultation and Community Engagement. This is a key 
design principle that has been warmly welcomed. Concerns have been raised 
about needing to ensure flexibility in communicating to different groups and 
this is acknowledged in the design principle itself. This division will also co-
ordinate all external consultation activity and will also connect the 
engagement activity that takes place with all areas of Kent but at present is 
not internally as connected as it could be. We are losing the opportunity to 
add a whole Council value to this engagement. Further work will be needed to 
establish what connections with the teams currently involved in community 
engagement should look like and how embedded in Directorates or drawn 
together in this division the service should be.  

Business Strategy & Support Directorate 

72. The provision of a sound, efficient corporate support and strategy function is 
an essential component in enabling the effective operation of KCC as a public 
service provider delivering a range of services to the community.   Therefore 
whilst the role of this area of business is self-evident – how it is set up and the 
business model it follows invariably depends on the wider political, financial 
and policy pressures the organisation must respond to. 

73. In responding to the increasingly clear direction set by the Coalition 
Government for the future of public services it is clear that a number of key 
principles are critical success factors 

Efficiency
Effectiveness 
Customer Experience 
Intelligent commissioning 
Engagement  

74. Priorities will now have to be set across and between different services – 
rather than simply within them - in order to deliver the size of the financial 
savings required by the Treasury.  The challenge will not be to become more 
efficient at doing what is currently being done, but to focus resources on 
doing the right things.  This will require the political and managerial leadership 
of the authority to continually evaluate what services to provide, how they 
should be delivered, 

75. The role of BSS therefore must be to structure itself and its business model 
around meeting the changed needs of the organisation – it must therefore: 

Continue to provide transactional support services, but seek to provide
these at ever-lower cost to the organisation.

 Support the political and managerial leadership in its strategic decision 
making role in regard to the prioritisation and value of services. 

76. These core activities are the driving force behind structural changes that 
provide support for:

 A clear separation of the activities that are about ‘deciding’ what should be 
provided from those responsible for providing services 

 An overall reduction in layers of management  

 Professional and technical support services and resources to be 
 delivered from a single point and not replicated in individual  services   

Page 33



 Priorities to be set in relation to the identified needs based on 
independent, sound, accurate, reliable data.  

77. Therefore central to ensuring KCC is fit for the future is the need for a strong 
corporate function to offer clear intelligence and effective controls for the 
organisation in support of its strategic decision-making role, whilst 
professional, technical and other support services are grouped together to 
provide consistency, economies of scale and remove unnecessary 
duplication. 

78. Within this Directorate is a new business strategy division. The division would 
undertake high-quality policy analysis, to provide in-depth professional advice 
in support of Cabinet and CMT in their strategic decision-making role. The 
division would act as an integral driving force behind the decisions of 
Cabinet/CMT, with the functions to ensure they have the capacity to provide 
the full range of analysis and advice required.  

79. This will be a mix of generalist and service specialists networked into the 
service delivery, partnerships and national and local government policy 
framework that are able to provide sound evidence based advice and 
judgement on service policy questions and opportunities in support of Cabinet 
and CMT.   This policy function handles both strategic and specialist policy 
activities to support the business of the Council, including strategic and 
spatial planning, regeneration, social and education policy.    In addition this 
function would allow Directorates to access high quality, professional policy 
advice and support, from specialists with service specific-knowledge. It would 
also provide the capacity for specific one-off pieces of work on behalf of 
Cabinet/CMT, as and when the need arises.  

80. Partnerships work would be directed by, and inform, organisational strategy in 
a way that is targeted towards specific objectives. Delivering through and with 
partners will be a core requirement over the medium to long term and the 
management and support of partnership arrangements to drive this agenda 
forward needs to be mainstreamed into the strategic decision making process 
of the authority.   

81. The Business Intelligence Unit would focus on providing the information and 
research capability that drives meaningful and effective prioritisation and 
decision making.  The logic behind this is both the fundamental role they play 
in effective, evidence-based strategy & prioritisation, and the critical mass of 
core skills sets required for these functions. 

Horizon scanning  
Knowledge management 
Needs/ demands analysis function 

82. Monitoring and management of KCC’s progress against strategic objectives 
as set by Cabinet/CMT. Working closely with the business review and audit 
functions, Performance Management will provide the strategic decision-
makers of the organisation and external regulators with robust, timely 
information about how well services are performing, identified reasons for 
performance variance and options and solutions open to resolve against poor 
performance. The information gathered by the function will also feed into the 
analysis and prioritise phases of strategic decision-making, by allowing 
Cabinet/CMT to gain a holistic understanding of what is working well and 
what isn’t.

Page 34



83. The corporate and business support to all the Directorates of the authority will 
be conducted through this Directorate. This includes the key support functions 
that underpin the business of the whole authority (Finance, Information 
Technology, Law, HR and Property) as well as governance and democratic 
support.  The overriding objective should be for all our support functions to be 
provided at the lowest possible cost whilst meeting appropriate business 
need.  Economies of scale require and a ‘one Council’ approach necessitates 
the continued provision of support services in Directorates no longer can be 
afforded.  Effective market understanding and sound commissioning / 
procurement skills should ensure an ability of corporate support services to 
cater for even the most service specific of Directorate requirements.   

84. In order to make the model work all corporate support functions should be 
grouped together.  However, a strategic interface does not necessarily mean 
that support functions would be delivered to a one-size-fits-all business 
model.   Different support services to different services must recognise their 
different market conditions and complexities which mean there may be 
different business solutions as to the most cost effective way to provide these 
services to the organisation.  For any support service there are a number of 
business models that will be explored by service managers to ensure 
provision in the most effective way. These will be explored throughout this 
consultation period.  

85. As mentioned earlier in the report there are two Corporate Directors also 
housed within this Directorate. They are first tier officers who are Members of 
the Corporate Management Team providing strategic advice and guidance to 
the operation of the whole authority. They also deliver significant operational 
activity that supports the smooth running of the whole Council. Therefore on 
the basis of the design principle they need to be based here.  The two 
statutory posts that reside in this Directorate (Monitoring Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer) have at all times a clear and direct relationship with the 
Managing Director even though there is no direct reporting relationship.  

86. The post of Director of Governance and Assurance has been created so to 
reflect the increased need of the authority to build upon its current 
governance environment and to ensure in the light of the very significant 
changes both policy wise and financially that we are facing, the Council is 
spending its money wisely and taking its decision well. It is also intended over 
time to explore how we could develop our currently very successful legal 
services into a company  

87. Property continues as a division in this structure but will change to become 
the corporate landlord and home of all the Council’s capital development 
activity.

88. The HR Division will also draw together all the learning and development 
activity currently undertaken within Directorates to achieve greater economies 
of scale and coherence within the development programmes of the Council’s 
staff.  Some of this training is also directed at the Council’s partners and wider 
related workforces. This will of course be maintained through this new 
function.

Page 35



Conclusion

89. Cabinet have before them a draft proposed structure for consultation and new 
ways of working within the Council. There are also actions contained within 
the previous report that will enable us to ensure that we can shape the whole 
of the Council’s operating environment and not just the “reporting lines”.   

90. There have been three weeks of consultation with staff and eight meetings 
with 219 managers to assess whether in the face of all that we see in the 
future – policy changes both here and nationally and financial changes to 
name a few – we are still fit for purpose in our current arrangements.  

91. The Managing Directors and Executive Directors and Director of Finance and 
HR  have had a number of 1:1 meetings with the Group Managing Director 
about these ideas and have had two meetings as sub groups of CMT (due to 
annual leave) on 1st September and the 8th September and one CMT 
discussion on the final draft this week – 5th October. It is a very difficult 
balancing act being both consultee and affected by a developing process and 
being able to fully discuss matters in a personally disinterested way.  I do 
acknowledge that some members of CMT would have liked more 
involvement. However I believe the way it has been structured has enabled 
them to properly influence my advice to Cabinet.  

92. A wide range of views have been received, and overall although Members 
can clearly judge for themselves from the feedback that they have it is my 
view there is a broad level of support for change and a recognition that we 
cannot stay the same. 

93. Many of them say – “let’s see what we could change into” and these draft 
structure proposals offer that alternative view. This is a genuine consultation 
and many of the early ideas on what the structure could look like have been 
altered by the feedback received so far. 

94. A risk register is attached as Appendix 3 for Cabinet’s assessment in their 
consideration of their decision to proceed with this consultation.  It is 
important that this is fully considered in the decision process.  

95. There are two particular types of risk that Cabinet must consider. There are 
the type 1 risks that are very clearly laid out in the register and the mitigating 
actions that are in place or are proposed.  There are also the type two risks 
that if we do not take this decision now – what are the consequences of not 
acting in the light of all the challenges we face. If this is as successful as it is 
believed and will position the Council to be able to deal with its challenges in 
a stronger and more effective way than if we stay as we are – what additional 
benefits and opportunities do we risk for the people of Kent and our staff.  

96. A community impact assessment is also contained as Appendix 4 assessing 
the implications and impact of this decision to formally consult on a new 
structure.

97. In the previous report to Cabinet already circulated paragraph 7. ii)  indicates 
that this restructure must of course contribute to the savings that the council 
needs to make in response to the CSR shortly to be announced. It is also 
recognised good practice for any organisation to be constantly assessing 

Page 36



whether its managerial overheads are at the right price and are organised in 
the most cost effective way for the current and developing circumstances for 
that organisation.  At this stage it is not possible to accurately quantify a 
amount- although human resources estimate a potential saving of at least 
£500,000 from these proposals.

98. Whilst that is undeniably useful, what is much more important is whether or 
not the council’s structure and its managerial resources are organised in the 
best way possible to deliver the quantum of savings that we know we must. 

The real value in this redesign is that it provides the platform as we work 
through the changes for major savings to be delivered.  

99. I commend these draft structure proposals to Cabinet to endorse for formal 
consultation until the 3rd December 2010.  The outcome of that consultation 
process will then be brought before Full Council for its decision on the 16th

December 2010. 

Page 37



C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
v
e

 A
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 V

e
rs

io
n

 1
.0

  
1

3
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0

M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r

(H
P

S
) 

*

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o

n

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 

(D
C

S
)

*

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r

F
a
m

ili
e
s
, 

H
e

a
lt
h
 &

 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

(D
A

S
S

) 
*

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 *

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 *

D
e

p
u

ty
 M

a
n

a
g

in
g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 &

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 *

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
S

c
h

o
o

l 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

&
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
 S

c
h

o
o
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
S

c
h

o
o
l 
R

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
O

ld
e
r 

P
e

o
p
le

 &
 

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
D

is
a

b
ili

ty

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 &
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
, 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

E
n

g
a

g
e
m

e
n

t

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
K

e
n

t 
H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 

&
 W

a
s
te

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 &

 

E
n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 &
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

(s
1

5
1

) 
*

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 

H
R

 a
n

d
 I

T
 *

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 &

 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 S

u
p

p
o

rt

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 &
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 (
M

O
)

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

* 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 M

a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
T

e
a

m
 (

1
s
t
T

ie
r)

A
L

T
E

R
N

A
T

IV
E

 P
R

O
P

O
S

A
L

Page 38



A
L
T

E
R

N
A

T
IV

E
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 &
 S

k
il

ls
 

 (
D

C
S

) 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

S
c

h
o

o
l 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

S
c

h
o

o
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
  

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

D
o

tt
e

d
 l

in
e

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

s
h

ip
 t

o
 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

E
a

rl
y
 y

e
a

rs
 a

n
d

 C
h

ild
c
a

re
  

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
 

 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
 

S
e
c
o
n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

 
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 

1
4
-1

9
 E

n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
t 
 

C
a

re
e
rs

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 

C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

 o
f 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 

G
o
v
e
rn

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o

r 
p

a
re

n
ts

 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
A

w
a
rd

s
 

A
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 &

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

  

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 B

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
L
e
a
rn

e
rs

 w
it
h
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 P
ro

v
is

io
n
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

P
 d

is
a
b
ili

ty
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

S
E

N
, 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
) 

S
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
P

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
y
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
in

a
n
c
e
, 
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 p

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
  

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
a

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

c
o
m

p
a
n
y
/v

e
h
ic

le
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

 
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 

 
P

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l 
 

T
ra

d
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 
C

o
n

ti
n
u

o
u
s
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e

  

T
h

is
 m

e
a

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d

 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h
e
 

c
h

ild
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 t
e

a
m

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 

L
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 1

2
 d

is
tr

ic
t 
te

a
m

s
, 

lo
c
a

lit
y
 b

o
a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

T
ru

s
t 

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

: 
T

h
e
 h

e
a
d
in

g
s
 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 1

s
t  a

n
d

 2
n
d
 t
ie

r 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
p

o
s
ts

 a
re

 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 i
n
d

ic
a

ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
a
t 
d
iv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

. 

Page 39



A
L
T

E
R

N
A

T
IV

E
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
 

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

: 
T

h
e
 h

e
a
d
in

g
s
 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 1

s
t  a

n
d

 2
n
d
 t
ie

r 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
p

o
s
ts

 a
re

 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 i
n
d

ic
a

ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
a
t 
d
iv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

. 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

  
F

a
m

il
ie

s
, 

H
e

a
lt

h
 &

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

  
 

  
(D

A
S

S
)

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
(d

o
tt

e
d

 l
in

e
 t

o
 D

C
S

) 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 &
 

P
h

y
s

ic
a

l 
D

is
a

b
il

it
y
 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 
D

is
a

b
il

it
y
 &

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

P
u

b
li

c
 H

e
a

lt
h

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 H
e
a

lt
h

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
  

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
  

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e

o
p

le
  
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
  

O
P

 /
 P

D
 &

 L
D

 &
 M

H
  

C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 &
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 M
a

rk
e
t 

S
h

a
p

in
g

Q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a
rd

in
g
 A

d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 
C

h
ild

re
n

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 W

e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
 

(I
n
it
ia

l 
d
u
ty

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 c

h
ild

 
p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 c

a
re

, 
p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
) 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 E

a
s
t 
K

e
n

t 
 

(d
it
to

)

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 M

id
 K

e
n
t 
 

(d
it
to

)

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 (

in
c
lu

d
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

d
o
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
o
s
te

ri
n

g
, 

U
n

a
c
c
o

m
p
a

n
ie

d
 A

s
y
lu

m
 S

e
e

k
in

g
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

) 

L
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 1

2
 d

is
tr

ic
t 
te

a
m

s
, 
lo

c
a
lit

y
 

b
o

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 
(j
o

in
t 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

) 

H
o
S

 A
s
h
fo

rd
 /
S

h
e
p
w

a
y
 

H
o
S

 D
o
v
e
r 

/T
h
a
n
e
t 

H
o

S
 C

a
n

te
rb

u
ry

 /
S

w
a

le
 

H
o
S

 M
a
id

s
to

n
e
 /
 M

a
lli

n
g
 

H
o
S

 S
o
u
th

 W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 

H
o

S
 D

a
rt

fo
rd

, 
G

ra
v
e
s
h

a
m

 &
 

S
w

a
n
le

y

H
o
S

 L
D

 –
 W

K
 

H
o
S

 L
D

 –
 E

K
 

V
P

N
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
o

 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
o
 c

re
a

te
 f
o
r 

e
.g

. 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 H

e
a
lt
h
 T

ru
s
t 
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 
(c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 &

 b
a

c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
) 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
te

a
m

 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 
s
o
c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
  

R
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 t
o
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

In
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 

H
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

m
o
ti
o

n
 

C
a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
 w

a
tc

h
 

Page 40



A
L
T

E
R

N
A

T
IV

E
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
 

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

: 
T

h
e
 h

e
a
d
in

g
s
 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 1

s
t  a

n
d

 2
n
d
 t
ie

r 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
p

o
s
ts

 a
re

 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 i
n
d

ic
a

ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
a
t 
d
iv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

. 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

  
C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
N

e
e

d
 c

lo
s

e
 l

in
k

s
 t

o
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

, 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
R

e
-e

n
g

in
e

e
ri
n

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 n
e

w
 m

o
d
e

ls
 f
o
r 

e
x
te

rn
a

lis
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
, 

e
.g

. 
o

u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g

/ 
m

u
tu

a
ls

 /
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
 

L
o
c
a
lit

y
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 T
e
a
m

 

P
la

c
e

 b
a
s
e
d

 b
u

d
g
e

ti
n

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
o

ff
e

n
d

e
r 

m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 

M
a

rg
a

te
 T

a
s
k
 f
o

rc
e

 
P

la
c
e

 b
a
s
e
d

 b
u

d
g
e

ti
n

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
M

a
rg

a
te

 t
a

s
k
 f
o
rc

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 i
n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 

W
e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
 

K
e

n
t 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

B
u
ild

in
g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
(S

IL
K

) 

B
ig

 S
o
c
ie

ty
 

V
o

lu
n

te
e
ri
n

g
  

G
a
te

w
a
y
 D

e
liv

e
ry

  

C
o

n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n

tr
e

  

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 w

e
b

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
  

H
e
a
lt
h
 w

a
tc

h
 

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 &

 A
rc

h
iv

e
s
  

R
e

g
is

tr
a
rs

 

A
rt

s
 &

 K
e
n
t 
F

ilm
 O

ff
ic

e
 

S
p
o
rt

, 
L
e
is

u
re

 &
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
 

C
o

u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 –

 P
R

O
W

 

C
o
u
n
tr

y
 P

a
rk

s
 &

 K
e
n
t 
D

o
w

n
s
 A

O
N

B
  

E
x
te

n
d

e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 

A
d
u
lt
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

  

A
d

u
lt
 A

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e
s
h

ip
s
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 

Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

  
K

D
A

A
T

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
/ 
p
u
b
lic

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 L

ia
is

o
n

  

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
- 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
  

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

M
e

d
ia

 a
n
d

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

s
 

D
ig

it
a
l 
&

 M
o
v
in

g
 I
m

a
g
e
s
 

E
v
e

n
ts

Page 41



A
L
T

E
R

N
A

T
IV

E
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

  
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

K
e

n
t 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

 a
n

d
 

W
a

s
te

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 &

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
  

N
e

tw
o

rk
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 &
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

 

T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

C
o

u
n

ty
w

id
e

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

  

W
a

s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

K
e

n
t 

S
c
ie

n
ti
fi
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
  

V
is

it
 K

e
n

t 

L
o

c
a

te
 i
n

 K
e
n

t 

P
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 i
n
 K

e
n

t 

T
o

u
ri

s
m

P
ro

je
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n

d
 a

n
y
 p

la
c
e

 
b

a
s
e

d
 b

u
d

g
e

ti
n

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 o

n
 r

e
g

e
n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
n

in
g

  
 

(M
W

F
 &

 L
D

F
’s

) 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
  

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 &

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 (

ru
ra

l 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 &

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

) 

N
a

tu
ra

l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

&
 C

o
a

s
t 

 

G
y
p

s
y
 &

 T
ra

v
e

lle
r 

U
n

it
 

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

P
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
: 
T

h
e

 h
e

a
d

in
g

s
 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e

 1
s
t  a

n
d

 2
n
d
 t

ie
r 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
p

o
s
ts

 a
re

 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t
h

a
t 

d
iv

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

. 

Page 42



A
L
T

E
R

N
A

T
IV

E
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
 

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

: 
T

h
e
 h

e
a
d
in

g
s
 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 1

s
t  a

n
d

 2
n
d
 t
ie

r 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
p

o
s
ts

 a
re

 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 i
n
d

ic
a

ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
a
t 
d
iv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

. 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

 
B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 &

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 
A

n
d

 D
e

p
u

ty
 M

a
n

a
g

in
g

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 &
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
(C

h
ie

f 
F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

- 
S

1
5

1
)

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

 B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
  

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 

a
n

d
 A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e
(M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r)

  

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 

a
n

d
 I

n
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 &

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 

A
u

d
it
 &

 R
is

k
  

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 -

 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 F
in

a
n
c
e

 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
te

a
m

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
lic

y
 

E
u
ro

p
e

 /
 I
n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

P
u
b
lic

 a
ff
a
ir
s
 

P
u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 

E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

R
e

g
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 –
 s

p
a

ti
a

l 
&

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

. 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
s
s
e
ts

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
p
o
lic

y
  

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
&

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 &

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
F

u
n
d

in
g
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
O

ff
ic

e
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

tr
a

n
s
p

a
re

n
c
y
 

C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 d

a
ta

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
  

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

L
e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 t
o
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
rm

s
 l
e
n
g
th

 t
ra

d
in

g
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
) 

E
le

c
ti
o

n
s
 

C
o

ro
n

e
rs

 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
&

 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

  

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 
 

&
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 F
u

n
d

  

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
T

o
ta

l 
P

la
c
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

B
S

F
, 
P

F
I 
&

 
A

c
a

d
e
m

ie
s
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 P
F

I 
 

&
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
(K

A
S

S
) 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 
–
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 

O
ff
ic

e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

E
s
ta

te
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
&

 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
  

H
R

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
  

(i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 g

ra
d

u
a

te
 s

c
h
e

m
e

) 
 

H
R

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

m
b

e
d

d
e

d
 –

 
le

a
rn

in
g

 a
n
d

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
  

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 –
 H

R
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 –
 c

a
s
e

 w
o

rk
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 H
R

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

IC
T

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
  

IC
T

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 

K
e

n
t 
C

o
n

n
e

c
ts

  

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 -

 D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 
IT

Page 43



Appendix 2 

The First Bold Step 

Report on the informal consultation process 

Informal Consultation process 

1. The leaflet ‘The first bold step – proposals for consultation with staff on a 
new KCC’ was published on KNet on Wednesday 9 September following 
agreement by private cabinet and the Conservative Group to this.  Hard 
copies were sent to home addresses for all staff without access to KNet. 

2. This was an informal consultation, not done to meet an obligation under 
employment law, and with no mandated timescale.  Three weeks were 
allowed to the submission of responses from staff. 

3. All staff were invited to respond with their views.  Responses could be 
made electronically or in hard copy.  Consultation closed on Friday 1 
October at which point: 

 4,000 copies had been distributed 

 7878 copies were accessed or downloaded from KNet 

 319 responses had been received: 41 in hard copy and 278 
online

 170 staff members have requested to be involved in further 
activity to transform KCC.  

4. Responses could be made anonymously and with the implication that 
staff could speak openly, freely and without recrimination.  All responses 
have been read by Katherine Kerswell who has responded personally to 
every respondent who opted to include their e-mail address.

5. Comments were predominantly positive and supportive, though some 
questioned the value of consultation.  Most welcomed the proposals for 
change and overwhelmingly recognised the need for change now.  Many 
advocated a reduction in the cost and number of senior managers, or 
were fearful that the cost savings would fall disproportionately on front-
line staff and service delivery. A large number of comments were 
specific to their service and directorate, often focussing on 
improvements to process and cost savings.

6. Comments were wide ranging.   A summary of the responses is provided 
below from paragraph 10 onwards. 

Appendix 2 1 of 6 7 October 2010Page 44



7. In addition to seeking responses by email and hard copy, feedback was 
sought from senior staff though meetings with Katherine Kerswell.  In all, 
242 senior staff were invited to, and 219 attended, 1 of 8 meetings 
between 9 September and 30 September at which Katherine presented 
and sought feedback on whether we should change the organisational 
framework in order to be able to respond to the very different policy and 
financial context facing us and our own plans under Bold Steps for Kent. 
Meetings were all held at Sessions House and each meeting included a 
question and answer session.  There was a balanced mixture of all 
directorates at every meeting. 

8. As part of each 90 minute meeting, feedback was sought from staff on: 

8.1. likes and dislikes – “how I feel about KCC”.   

8.2. their view of current KCC values in practice 

8.3. ‘horizon scanning’ - what risks did they see that would need to 
recognised and managed as we transform the organisation. 

9. Feedback was by individual rather than by groups, unprompted in that 
individuals could comment on any aspect of KCC, not prioritised or 
ranked or given a position in a range, and not moderated or challenged. 
The feedback provides a simple unedited snapshot of managers’ 
opinions of KCC and by implication of themselves.  A summary of the 
feedback is below.  It was very evident after the first two meetings that 
feedback from managers in each meeting was broadly the same in what 
it praised KCC for and what it criticised KCC for. 

Summary of the responses from the Informal Consultation  

10. The responses received to “The First Bold Step”, whether at meetings 
with managers or as written responses, are summarised below.
Appropriate direct quotes are included in italics.  

11. The following general themes were evident: 

11.1. There is appetite for change: we are realistic about the financial 
situation, and we accept the need to change and do it now.  No one 
denied the financial situation or proposed delaying change. 

11.2. The engagement of staff in the process of change is seen as wholly 
positive and we want more not less communication.  A very few 
individuals thought information was being withheld and that there 
were fake consultations when decisions are pre-made.

11.3. KCC is seen as a good employer.  There were a small number of 
negative comments, but the majority view was that we: value staff;
value staff contribution; train staff; are a fair employer; a good 
employer; and have good pay and pensions, we are inclusive.

Appendix 2 2 of 6 7 October 2010Page 45



11.4.We like our colleagues.  We are fair, kind, polite, fun, have respect 
for each other and are caring. We are principled, honest, show 
courage, are dedicated, committed and hard-working and we are a 
loyal workforce.

11.5. We are critical of our management style. 

12. Our strategy was accepted.  Staff showed their approval of the strategy 
through their endorsement of support for vulnerable people, support for 
the local economy and a desire, if not always followed through, to put the 
customer first.  There were the following challenges to the strategy: 

 in addition to tackling disadvantage we should continue to 
provide high quality services for the rest of the population 

 we should not lose sight of children and young people’s 
services as a priority 

 our commitment to grow the economy should not be at the 
expense of the environment. 

13. Our structure was accepted.

13.1. No one disagreed with a flat structure and no alternative types of 
structure were proposed.  There were only three comments on 
structure and they proposed: 

 three directorates: one for each of the three ambitions of our 
strategy

 KASS and Children’s Services to combine 

 the federated system be retained. 

13.2. There was a very strong dislike of silos.  Among managers 15.2% 
(i.e. 33) explicitly cited silos as something they disliked about the 
way KCC worked: it is sometime easier to work with partners than 
with other parts of KCC, silo mentality between directorates, silos 
within directorates; deliberately duplicate to self-protect, protect 
budgets rather than deal with problems.  There were 2 comments 
that thought we worked well across directorates.  In comparison 
there were over 50 comments to the contrary on silos, duplication 
and failure to share information 

14. Our systems

14.1. While some thought we manage well, others were critical of the 
way we manage and are managed – and that criticism came from 
managers.  We micromanage, we overmanage;  we have top
heavy oppressive management; we are obsessed with protocols 
and process and tick boxes.  We talk big about empowering 

Appendix 2 3 of 6 7 October 2010Page 46



managers but it does not happen; we have a treacle layer which 
can be insular and resistant.   There is favouritism, ego and he/she 
who shouts loudest gets heard.  We are not decisive.

14.2. Gateways were welcomed.  There were reservations about their 
implementation and whether staff will be adequately trained to deal 
with service issues.

15. Our shared values. No one thought we had a set of shared values, 
although some were confident they had a set of shared values within 
their directorate.  No proposals were made for shared values. 

16. Our style drew the largest response. There was broad agreement with 
the styles, but considerable disagreement over the extent to which we 
currently exhibit those styles.  Below is a diagrammatic representation of 
where the responses fell: 

 I agree with the style 

16.1.We put the customer first 

Staff accepted this without exception as a style we should 
have for external customers, and showed a massive 
commitment to public service.  But staff were largely silent on 
how we should treat internal customers. 

 Many thought that we already put the customer first, but a 
substantial number thought we spoke of putting the customer 
first but in practice did otherwise.  Specific comments were: 

Continuous
improvement

Continuous
improvement

Trusted by
Partners Customer first 

 we do this 
already 

 we don’t do this 
or we do it poorly 

One
voice

I disagree with the style 

Cabinet
CMT

Appendix 2 4 of 6 7 October 2010Page 47



we are controlling; we pretend to consult; we don’t really want 
to know what the public thinks.

16.2.We communicate as one voice as one unified organisation

 Staff largely accepted this as a goal.  They want us to speak 
out for Kent as a whole and communicate clearly and more 
often.  Some comments show discomfort over ‘one voice’ as it 
stifles debate and is Orwellian.  One respondent thought we 
should retain separate cultures and styles.

 We are not a unified organisation as evidenced by the 
comments objecting to silos and duplication throughout the 
organisation.  Autonomy and the flexibility to make local 
decisions found favour with a few respondents. 

16.3.Cabinet and CMT  work as a joint team with clear roles

 A small number thought the administration is clear about what 
it wants and liked the experienced leadership at MD level.

 But the substantial majority of comments were negative. No
joint working with the senior leadership team;  CMT in-fighting 
and ‘them and us’ between the centre and the directorates;
too many plans and directives with mixed messages; 
business planning is meaningless and non-responsive; and
we challenge Government on regulation but we still over-
regulate and monitor internally.  It must be noted that all of 
these quotes came from managers. 

16.4.Everyone is hungry for continuous improvement  

 Staff accepted this style without exception, but have polarised 
views on our current performance 

 Many staff said we already practiced this style:  we are 
innovative, creative, willing to change, forward thinking and
willing to take risks and try new things.

 A greater number disagreed.  Many thought we failed to 
innovate, others said we are big on rhetoric of creative and 
challenging thinking but the reality is we are risk averse; we
are resistant to change; it has to be like that because that’s 
how we have done is for years; governance restricts 
innovation; we don’t deliver but strategise well; we fail to act 
on what we hear, we know best and fail to learn from the past; 
and we are sometimes dazzled by our own brilliance.

Appendix 2 5 of 6 7 October 2010Page 48



Appendix 2  6 of 6 7 October 2010

16.5.Our relationship with partners should be based on trust

 Staff accepted this style without exception, but we do not 
practice it.  A few thought we work well with partners but most 
spoke of a poor relationship: we preach at prospective 
partners; we are autocratic with partners, we are dismissive of 
partners and districts, we think we know best and we are 
arrogant.

17. Our skills.  The general view was that we value staff training and staff 
appreciate that, but otherwise this style generated little comment. 

J Hawkins 
1.68 Sessions House 
ext 8103 
mobile 077 99 88 4149 

Page 49



M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

is
k
s
 -

 R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

(t
e

m
p

la
te

 s
o

u
rc

e
: 

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
)

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
 T

o
 K

e
e
p

 S
u

c
c
e
e
d

in
g

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
:

J
e
ff
  
H

a
w

k
in

s
, 
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
r k

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 7
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

R
A

 1
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 

h
a
p
p
e
n
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
 a

s
 o

th
e
r 

d
e
m

a
n
d
s
 o

n
 K

C
C

: 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
p
o
lic

y
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
; 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 m
e
d
iu

m
 

te
rm

 p
la

n
. 
  
T

h
a
t 
p
la

c
e
s
 g

re
a
t 
d
e
m

a
n
d
s
 

o
n
 K

C
C

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
.

5
4

2
0

T
h
is

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 l
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 G

ro
u
p
 M

a
n
a
g
in

g
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 h

e
r.

  
 C

M
T

 i
s
 t
h
e
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a
rd

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 w

e
e
k
ly

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 a

t 
C

M
T

. 
 (

It
 i
s
 

th
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
G

M
D

 a
n
d
 C

M
T

 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 m

a
jo

r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
h
e
re

n
t 
ri
s
k
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
t 
e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
th

a
t 
C

M
T

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 d

ir
e
c
t 

re
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
).

A
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p
la

n
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
lin

e
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
a
 p

ro
je

c
t 
te

a
m

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
, 
ri
s
k
s
 

a
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 s

te
p
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 t
a
k
e
n
.

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 i
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.

C
M

T
 w

ill
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
a
m

in
e
 t
h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 c

re
a
te

 m
o
d
e
ls

 

fo
r 

n
e
w

 w
a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
.

3
3

9

T
y
p

e
 2

: 
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
e
q

u
e
n

c
e
 o

f 
N

O
T

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 a
t 

th
is

 t
im

e
:

1
. 
  
It
 i
s
 i
m

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

 n
e
w

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 d
o
v
e
ta

ils
 a

n
d
 a

lig
n
s
 a

b
s
o
lu

te
ly

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
e
rm

 p
la

n
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
o
 t
h
a
t 
p
la

n
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
fo

u
r 

y
e
a
r.

2
. 
  
T

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
  
re

lie
s
 u

p
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

th
e
rs

.

3
. 
 I
f 
w

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 
m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

e
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 t
o
 r

e
s
o
rt

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
-

d
e
c
lin

e
 a

n
d
 b

e
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
K

e
n
t 
is

 r
e
n
o
w

n
e
d
 f
o
r.

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
M

it
ig

a
te

d
 R

is
k

(w
it
h
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
In

h
e
re

n
t 
R

is
k

(w
it
h
 n

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

R
is

k

N
o

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s

R
is

k
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
M

e
a
s
u
re

In
it
ia

l 
R

is
k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

C
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

o
 S

u
c
c
e

e
d

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
v
 1

.0
p
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 
8

2
6
/1

0
/1

0

Page 50



M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

is
k
s
 -

 R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

(t
e

m
p

la
te

 s
o

u
rc

e
: 

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
)

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
 T

o
 K

e
e
p

 S
u

c
c
e
e
d

in
g

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
:

J
e
ff
  
H

a
w

k
in

s
, 
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
r k

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 7
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
M

it
ig

a
te

d
 R

is
k

(w
it
h
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
In

h
e
re

n
t 
R

is
k

(w
it
h
 n

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

R
is

k

N
o

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s

R
is

k
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
M

e
a
s
u
re

R
A

 2
C

a
b
in

e
t 
o
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

d
e
la

y
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 

th
e
 n

e
w

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l,
 o

r 
re

je
c
t 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
o
u
tr

ig
h
t.

5
4

2
0

C
a
b
in

e
t 
a
n
d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 o

p
p
o
s
it
io

n
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 b

ri
e
fe

d
 a

n
d
 

k
e
p
t 
a
b
re

a
s
t 
o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
. 
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 p

la
y
 a

 r
o
le

 i
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 d

ra
ft
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 a
t 
th

e
 o

u
ts

e
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 m
a
d
e
 a

re
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 o

u
r 

fu
tu

re
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s

In
fo

rm
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 h

a
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 g

a
u
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
.

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

if
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 i
s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

 o
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 

p
la

n
 t
h
a
t 
w

o
u
ld

 a
llo

w
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 1

 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
1
.

5
2

1
0

T
y
p

e
 2

: 
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
e
q

u
e
n

c
e
 o

f 
d

e
fe

rr
in

g
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 o
r 

re
je

c
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l:

1
. 
  
W

e
  
w

o
u
ld

 p
ro

c
e
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 e

n
v
is

a
g
e
d
 y

e
t 
w

it
h
 

u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 o

v
e
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
e
rm

.

2
. 
  
W

e
 w

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 n

o
t 
b
u
ild

 i
n
 a

t 
th

e
 e

a
rl
ie

s
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 p
o
lic

y
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 o
f 
o
u
r 

n
e
w

 m
e
d
iu

m
 t
e
rm

 p
la

n
 o

r 
n
e
w

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

p
o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

.

3
. 
  
M

a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

it
h
in

 o
u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
o
u
ld

 

m
e
a
n
 w

e
 l
o
s
e
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 "

h
o
w

" 
w

e
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 

m
o
re

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 -

 t
h
e
 "

w
h
a
t"

 w
e
 d

o
.

4
. 
 W

e
 w

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 l
o
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

's
 r

o
le

 a
s
 t
h
e
 

p
la

tf
o
rm

 f
ro

m
 w

h
ic

h
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 £

3
4
0
 m

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
.

In
it
ia

l 
R

is
k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

C
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

o
 S

u
c
c
e

e
d

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
v
 1

.0
p
a
g
e
 2

 o
f 
8

2
6
/1

0
/1

0

Page 51



M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

is
k
s
 -

 R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

(t
e

m
p

la
te

 s
o

u
rc

e
: 

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
)

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
 T

o
 K

e
e
p

 S
u

c
c
e
e
d

in
g

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
:

J
e
ff
  
H

a
w

k
in

s
, 
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
r k

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 7
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
M

it
ig

a
te

d
 R

is
k

(w
it
h
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
In

h
e
re

n
t 
R

is
k

(w
it
h
 n

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

R
is

k

N
o

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s

R
is

k
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
M

e
a
s
u
re

R
A

 3
S

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

n
e
w

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 r
e
s
is

t 
th

e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
.

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 k

e
y
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 -
 

h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

, 
g
o
v
e
rn

o
rs

 e
tc

 -
 d

o
 n

o
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
.

3
3

9
F

u
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 s

ta
ff
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
.

E
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 
n
e
w

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 b

u
y
-i
n
.

E
a
rl
y
 c

o
n
ta

c
t,
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 e

x
p
la

in
 o

u
r 

id
e
a
s
.

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 f
o
r 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 r

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 f
o
r 

fi
lli

n
g
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 (
i.
e
. 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 's

lo
tt
in

g
 i
n
', 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 

c
a
n
d
id

a
te

, 
a
n
d
 r

e
d
e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
)

2
2

4

R
A

 4
s
ta

ff
  
m

o
ra

le
 f
a
lls

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

  
o
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

3
4

1
2

F
u
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff
 h

a
v
e
 

w
e
lc

o
m

e
d
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
w

e
 a

re
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 p
u
rs

u
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
. 
 T

h
e
 r

is
k
 t
o
 m

o
ra

le
 

is
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
o
 s

e
n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 a

re
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

.

U
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 d

a
m

a
g
e
s
 m

o
ra

le
; 
m

o
v
in

g
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
n
d
 d

e
c
is

iv
e
ly

 w
ill

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
is

 

ri
s
k
.

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 f
o
r 

m
o
s
t 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 m

o
s
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
y
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
, 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
, 
 t
h
e
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 

n
o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
th

e
ir
 d

a
y
-t

o
-d

a
y
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
.

It
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 s

h
o
w

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 d
u
ri
n
g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
.

3
2

6

T
y
p

e
 2

: 
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
e
q

u
e
n

c
e
 o

f 
n

o
t 

c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

h
e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

1
. 
 F

a
ilu

re
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le

 s
ilo

-w
o
rk

in
g
 m

a
y
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 h
a
v
e
 a

 w
o
rs

e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 

m
o
ra

le
. 
S

ta
ff
 e

x
p
e
c
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 a

re
 r

e
a
d
y
 f
o
r 

it
.

2
. 
 M

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
u
lt
u
re

 m
a
y
 w

o
rs

e
n
 s

ta
ff
 m

o
ra

le
 a

s
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 

d
ia

lo
g
u
e
 s

o
 f
a
r 

h
a
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 d

e
s
ir
e
 a

m
o
n
g
 s

ta
ff
 f
o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e

R
A

 5
S

ta
ff
 w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 b
e
in

g
 

's
lo

tt
e
d
 i
n
' o

r 
re

d
e
p
lo

y
e
d
 t
o
 a

 n
e
w

 p
o
s
t 

a
s
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 c
a
n
d
id

a
te

  
m

a
y
 l
e
a
v
e
.

3
3

9
H

R
 i
s
 r

e
a
d
y
 t
o
 a

p
p
o
in

t 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 o

f 

lo
o
k
in

g
 f
ir
s
t 
fo

r 
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
a
n
d
id

a
te

s
 t
o
 'a

c
t 
u
p
' 
a
s
 i
n
te

ri
m

s
.

2
3

6

In
it
ia

l 
R

is
k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

C
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

o
 S

u
c
c
e

e
d

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
v
 1

.0
p
a
g
e
 3

 o
f 
8

2
6
/1

0
/1

0

Page 52



M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

is
k
s
 -

 R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

(t
e

m
p

la
te

 s
o

u
rc

e
: 

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
)

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
 T

o
 K

e
e
p

 S
u

c
c
e
e
d

in
g

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
:

J
e
ff
  
H

a
w

k
in

s
, 
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
r k

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 7
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
M

it
ig

a
te

d
 R

is
k

(w
it
h
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
In

h
e
re

n
t 
R

is
k

(w
it
h
 n

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

R
is

k

N
o

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s

R
is

k
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
M

e
a
s
u
re

R
A

 6
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 l
e
g
a
lly

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
d
 

c
a
u
s
in

g
 d

e
la

y

5
2

1
0

M
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
: 
 

- 
  
w

e
 a

re
 a

llo
w

in
g
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

th
a
n
 s

ta
tu

to
ri
ly

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

- 
  
w

e
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n
g
 w

id
e
ly

 a
n
d
 f
re

q
u
e
n
tl
y

- 
  
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t
h
a
t 
is

 l
e
g
a
lly

 d
e
fe

n
s
ib

le

- 
  
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

e
ld

, 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

  
  
p
la

c
e
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 T

ra
d
e
s
 U

n
io

n
s

4
1

4

R
A

 7
H

R
 d

iv
is

io
n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 H

R
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 

o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
o
r 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 H
R

 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
 t
im

e
 f
o
r 

1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1

3
3

9
H

R
 h

a
v
e
 s

c
o
p
e
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 t
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t

3
2

6

R
A

 8
F

in
a
n
c
e
 d

iv
is

io
n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 r

e
c
a
s
t 
th

e
 2

0
1
1
/2

 b
u
d
g
e
ts

 

to
 a

lig
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
o
r 

c
re

a
te

 

th
e
 n

e
w

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

, 
p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
in

g
 o

c
c
u
p
ie

d
 

b
y
 o

th
e
r 

m
a
jo

r 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 (
O

ra
c
le

 r
e
le

a
s
e
 

1
2
 i
n
 N

o
v
 2

0
1
0
 a

n
d
 I
F

R
S

)

5
4

2
0

F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 s

c
o
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

.

E
x
tr

a
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
f 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

lo
a
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

a
s
e
d
 b

y
:

- 
  
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 a

t 
d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 l
e
v
e
l:
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
o
u
tw

a
rd

-f
a
c
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 

n
o
t 
b
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 b

u
t 
w

ill
 e

it
h
e
r 

n
o
t 
m

o
v
e
 o

r 
m

o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 e

n
ti
re

ty
 t
o
  
a
 

n
e
w

 d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re

- 
  
a
ll 

m
o
v
e
s
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 F

Y
 -

 s
o
 n

o
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

m
id

-F
Y

 

a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

- 
  
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 c

a
n
 r

e
a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

lo
a
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 t
o
d
a
y
 a

s
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 n

e
w

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

a
s
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t
h
e
ir
 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

iv
is

io
n
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 
in

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
.

T
y
p

e
 2

: 
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
e
q

u
e
n

c
e
 o

f 
N

O
T

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 o
n

 

1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
1

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
le

x
, 
a
n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 m
a
d
e
 m

o
re

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
  
if
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
a
lig

n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
.

4
3

1
2

In
it
ia

l 
R

is
k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

C
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

o
 S

u
c
c
e

e
d

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
v
 1

.0
p
a
g
e
 4

 o
f 
8

2
6
/1

0
/1

0

Page 53



M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

is
k
s
 -

 R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

(t
e

m
p

la
te

 s
o

u
rc

e
: 

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
)

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
 T

o
 K

e
e
p

 S
u

c
c
e
e
d

in
g

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
:

J
e
ff
  
H

a
w

k
in

s
, 
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
r k

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 7
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
M

it
ig

a
te

d
 R

is
k

(w
it
h
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
In

h
e
re

n
t 
R

is
k

(w
it
h
 n

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

R
is

k

N
o

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s

R
is

k
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
M

e
a
s
u
re

R
A

 9
T

h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 w
e
a
k
e
n
s
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

5
3

1
5

F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

re
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 o

n
 s

c
o
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 

it
e
m

is
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
.

T
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 a

t 
a
 s

in
g
le

 d
a
te

 (
1
 A

p
ri
l)
 m

e
a
n
s
 w

e
 a

v
o
id

 t
h
e
 i
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 

s
ta

te
s
 (

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 r

is
k
 o

f 
c
o
n
fu

s
io

n
  
o
v
e
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
) 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 

in
e
v
it
a
b
le

 i
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

re
 d

o
n
e
 a

s
 a

 s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
.

T
y
p

e
 2

: 
 t
a
k
e
n
 a

t 
fa

c
e
 v

a
lu

e
 t
h
is

 r
is

k
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 a

d
v
o
c
a
te

 n
o
t 

c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 a
t 
a
n
y
 d

a
te

 

3
3

9

R
A

1
0

T
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 a

 n
e
w

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 c
a
u
s
e
s
 

c
o
n
fu

s
io

n
 o

v
e
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 (

n
o
t 
ju

s
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 

m
a
tt
e
rs

, 
b
u
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
)

4
4

1
6

T
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
o
v
e
r 

a
p
p
lie

s
 o

n
ly

 t
o
 T

ie
r 

1
 a

n
d
 t
ie

r 
2
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

.

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
e
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

la
ri
fi
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 'D

 D
a
y
' h

a
n
d
o
v
e
r 

p
la

n

A
 s

in
g
le

 c
h
a
n
g
e
o
v
e
r 

d
a
te

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

a
ff
e
c
te

d
  
w

ill
 b

e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
fu

s
io

n
 a

m
o
n
g
 s

ta
ff
 i
n
 g

e
n
e
ra

l.

2
2

4

R
A

 1
1

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 'i

n
 f
lig

h
t' 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

re
 

d
ro

p
p
e
d
 o

r 
lo

s
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 a

 

n
e
w

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

  
(n

o
t 
ju

s
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 

m
a
tt
e
rs

, 
b
u
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
)

3
3

9
W

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
c
ru

p
u
lo

u
s
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 
a
ll 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 (

a
) 

a
 d

e
fa

u
lt
 

d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 -
 a

n
y
th

in
g
 t
h
a
t 
is

 n
o
t 

it
e
m

is
e
d
 g

o
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
fa

u
lt
 d

e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 (

b
) 

a
 s

m
a
ll 

c
lo

s
e
 d

o
w

n
 t
e
a
m

 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 t
ra

ili
n
g
 e

d
g
e
s
 i
n
 a

n
y
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
h
a
t 
c
lo

s
e
s
.

3
1

3

R
A

 1
2

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 I
T

 m
a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
im

e
5

3
1
5

IT
 a

re
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 H

R
 a

n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 s

y
s
te

m
s
, 

a
n
d
 e

x
a
m

in
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 I
T

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
y
s
te

m
s
. 
 T

h
e
  
n
e
x
t 
s
ta

g
e
 i
s
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
e
th

e
r,

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
s
ta

ff
 n

e
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 (

a
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
v
in

g
 t
o
 a

 n
e
w

 d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 m
a
y
 n

e
e
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

a
t 
d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

's
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
)

3
3

9

In
it
ia

l 
R

is
k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

C
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

o
 S

u
c
c
e

e
d

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
v
 1

.0
p
a
g
e
 5

 o
f 
8

2
6
/1

0
/1

0

Page 54



M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

is
k
s
 -

 R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

(t
e

m
p

la
te

 s
o

u
rc

e
: 

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
)

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
 T

o
 K

e
e
p

 S
u

c
c
e
e
d

in
g

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
:

J
e
ff
  
H

a
w

k
in

s
, 
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
r k

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 7
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
M

it
ig

a
te

d
 R

is
k

(w
it
h
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
In

h
e
re

n
t 
R

is
k

(w
it
h
 n

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

R
is

k

N
o

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s

R
is

k
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
M

e
a
s
u
re

R
A

 1
3

S
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 s
u
ff
e
rs

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
o
p
-l
e
v
e
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
, 
a
n
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

ro
p
s

3
4

1
2

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
b
e
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
, 
b
u
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 u

n
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 

e
x
c
e
p
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 l
in

e
 t
o
 a

 d
ir
e
c
to

r 
m

a
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 o

n
 1

 A
p
ri
l

T
h
is

 'n
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
' m

e
s
s
a
g
e
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
e
a
te

d
ly

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
.

D
e
ta

ile
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

e
v
e
ry

 d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 e
v
e
ry

 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 'n

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
' r

u
le

. 
 T

h
e
 n

e
w

 d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 

n
o
m

in
a
te

 a
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

th
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 s
te

p
s
 a

re
 

ta
k
e
n
 i
n
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
m

o
o
th

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 1

 A
p
ri
l.

W
e
 a

im
 t
o
 f
ill

 t
ie

r 
1
 p

o
s
ts

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
1
. 
 T

ie
r 

1
 a

p
p
o
in

te
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

'd
e
s
ig

n
a
te

' u
n
ti
l 
1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
 g

iv
in

g
 t
h
e
m

 t
im

e
 t
o
 p

re
p
a
re

 f
o
r 

a
 n

e
w

 r
o
le

.

3
2

6

R
A

1
4

A
d
v
e
rs

e
 m

e
d
ia

 c
o
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
 S

ta
ff
's

 

o
p
e
n
n
e
s
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 a

re
a
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

o
rt

ra
y
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

m
e
d
ia

 i
n
 a

 m
a
n
n
e
r 

th
a
t 
is

 d
a
m

a
g
in

g
 t
o
 

K
C

C
's

 r
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n

4
3

1
2

B
y
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

t 
th

e
 t
o
p
 t
ie

rs
 o

f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 t
h
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

e
e
n
 i
n
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 l
ig

h
t.
  
  
T

h
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
s
 a

 f
a
c
to

r 
th

a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 u

s
 -

 w
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta

ff
. 
 I
t 
is

 t
h
e
 s

ig
n
 o

f 
a
n
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
t 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 w

ill
in

g
 t
o
 e

x
a
m

in
e
 h

o
w

 i
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

p
e
ra

te
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
 

fr
a
n
k
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
it
s
e
lf
 a

n
d
 l
o
o
k
 f
o
r 

w
a
y
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
.

4
2

8

In
it
ia

l 
R

is
k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

C
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

o
 S

u
c
c
e

e
d

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
v
 1

.0
p
a
g
e
 6

 o
f 
8

2
6
/1

0
/1

0

Page 55



M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

is
k
s
 -

 R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

(t
e

m
p

la
te

 s
o

u
rc

e
: 

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
)

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
 T

o
 K

e
e
p

 S
u

c
c
e
e
d

in
g

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
:

J
e
ff
  
H

a
w

k
in

s
, 
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
r k

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 7
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
M

it
ig

a
te

d
 R

is
k

(w
it
h
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
In

h
e
re

n
t 
R

is
k

(w
it
h
 n

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

R
is

k

N
o

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s

R
is

k
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
M

e
a
s
u
re

R
A

1
5

N
o
t 
a
b
le

 t
o
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 b

u
d
g
e
t.
  

W
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
o
u
r-

y
e
a
r 

M
T

F
P

 -
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
y
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 -
 i
t 
is

 

c
le

a
rl
y
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
th

a
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 

c
o
s
te

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
d
y
 t
o
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
1
-

1
2
 b

u
d
g
e
t.
  
T

h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

is
ru

p
te

d
 b

y
 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
s
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

is
tu

rb
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

s
 m

a
y
 

u
n
d
e
rm

in
e
 t
h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 K
C

C
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 M

T
F

P
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
 m

a
y
 f
a
c
e
 o

f 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

2
5
%

 -
 4

0
%

 i
n
 f
u
n
d
in

g

5
4

2
0

T
h
e
s
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 w

id
e
ly

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

u
p
o
n
, 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
c
e
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

 w
id

e
ly

-h
e
ld

 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 w
e
ll 

a
w

a
re

 t
h
a
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 

s
h
o
w

n
 a

 b
ro

a
d
 r

e
c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
s
ty

le
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
.

T
h
e
 t
im

in
g
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 f
o
r 

a
n
y
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 M

T
F

P
, 
a
n
d
 a

n
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
1
. 
 A

n
y
 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
y
 a

ri
s
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

ill
, 
in

 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
c
a
s
e
, 
b
e
 f
ill

e
d
 b

y
 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
c
ti
n
g
-u

p
 i
n
te

ri
m

s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
.

C
M

T
 a

s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

o
a
rd

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

M
T

F
P

 s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
in

 t
w

o
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 b

u
t 
p
a
ra

lle
l 

w
o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

s
 b

u
t 
is

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
.

A
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 w

o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

o
a
rd

 w
ill

 o
v
e
rs

e
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
ile

 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 p

re
p
a
re

d
/p

u
rs

u
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 t
o
 C

M
T

.

5
2

1
0

R
A

1
6

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
to

 C
h
ild

re
n
's

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

. 
 I
t 

is
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
to

rs
 d

o
 n

o
t 

m
a
k
e
 a

n
y
 i
n
v
a
lid

 a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 

t
t

5
3

1
5

K
K

 a
n
d
 R

T
 w

ill
 s

p
e
a
k
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 w

it
h
 i
n
s
p
e
c
to

rs
 t
o
 e

x
p
la

in
 a

n
d
 a

lla
y
 a

n
y
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

5
1

5

In
it
ia

l 
R

is
k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

C
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

o
 S

u
c
c
e

e
d

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
v
 1

.0
p
a
g
e
 7

 o
f 
8

2
6
/1

0
/1

0

Page 56



M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

is
k
s
 -

 R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

(t
e

m
p

la
te

 s
o

u
rc

e
: 

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
)

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
 T

o
 K

e
e
p

 S
u

c
c
e
e
d

in
g

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
:

J
e
ff
  
H

a
w

k
in

s
, 
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
r k

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 7
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

Im
p
a
c
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
R

is
k

R
a
ti
n
g

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
M

it
ig

a
te

d
 R

is
k

(w
it
h
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
In

h
e
re

n
t 
R

is
k

(w
it
h
 n

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

R
is

k

N
o

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s

R
is

k
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
M

e
a
s
u
re

R
A

1
7

R
is

k
 o

f 
o
p
p
o
s
it
io

n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 m
o
d
e
l

4
3

1
2

D
e
ta

ile
d
  
tr

a
n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

a
n
d
, 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 r

e
m

it
 o

f 
a
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

, 
to

 a
d
ju

s
t 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
W

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
 n

e
w

 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

.

T
y
p

e
 2

. 
 F

a
il
u

re
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

R
e
te

n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
fe

d
e
ra

te
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
o
f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
in

 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 p

e
rp

e
tu

a
te

s
 t
h
e
 d

u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
ff
o
rt

 a
n
d
 s

ilo
-w

o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

o
s
t 
- 

s
o
m

e
th

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 s

ta
ff
 h

a
v
e
  
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 a

 f
e
a
tu

re
 o

f 
K

C
C

 

th
a
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
.

2
3

6

R
A

1
8

R
is

k
 o

f 
o
p
p
o
s
it
io

n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
  

a
n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 
fr

o
m

 h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

4
3

1
2

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
la

n
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
d
e
l.

R
e
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 T
ru

s
ts

 a
n
d
 L

o
c
a
lit

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
.

A
w

a
it
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 n

e
w

 r
o
le

2
2

4

In
it
ia

l 
R

is
k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

C
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

o
 S

u
c
c
e

e
d

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
v
 1

.0
p
a
g
e
 8

 o
f 
8

2
6
/1

0
/1

0

Page 57



 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 4
  

 
 

E
Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 I

M
P

A
C

T
 A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 S

C
R

E
E

N
IN

G
 G

R
ID

 

“
C

h
a

n
g

e
 t

o
 k

e
e

p
 s

u
c

c
e

e
d

in
g

”
. 

 T
h

e
 t

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
’s

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

H
IG

H
/M

E
D

IU
M

/L
O

W
/ 

N
O

N
E

/U
N

K
N

O
W

N
 

M
in

o
ri

ty
 

s
tr

a
n

d
C

o
u

ld
 t

h
is

 p
o

li
c

y
, 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
, 

p
ro

je
c

t 
o

r 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
ff

e
c

t 
th

is
 

g
ro

u
p

 d
if

fe
re

n
tl

y
 f

ro
m

 
o

th
e

rs
 i

n
 K

e
n

t?
 

Y
E

S
/N

O

C
o

u
ld

 t
h

is
 p

o
li

c
y
, 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
, 

p
ro

je
c

t 
o

r 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

m
o

te
 

e
q

u
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 
g

ro
u

p
?

Y
E

S
/N

O
P

o
s

it
iv

e
N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

R
e

a
s

o
n

 f
o

r 
a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 

A
g

e
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
M

e
d

iu
m

Y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

o
re

 
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 s
h

o
rt

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 t
h

a
n

 
o

th
e

rs
 a

n
d

 b
e

 l
e

s
s
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

d
. 

 
Y

o
u

n
g

e
r 

w
o

rk
e

rs
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 i
n

 
te

rm
s
 o

f 
re

d
u

n
d

a
n

c
y
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
, 

o
r 

in
 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
p

a
y
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 g

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
in

v
o

lv
e

s
 s

ta
ff

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 w

ill
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 p
a

y
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 T

o
ta

l 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 P

a
y
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 (

T
C

P
).

 

O
ld

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 s

h
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 n

o
t 

b
e

 t
re

a
te

d
 

le
s
s
 f

a
v
o

u
ra

b
ly

 o
v
e

r 
y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
s
ta

ff
 o

n
 

th
e

 g
ro

u
n

d
s
 o

f 
a

g
e

. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ro

le
s
 b

y
 

H
a

y
 G

ro
u

p
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 e

q
u

a
l 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
lig

n
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

a
y
 /

 
ro

le
s
.

Page 58



 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 4
  

 
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

M
e

d
iu

m
T

h
e

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 m

a
y
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 

re
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 

fo
r 

s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 

th
e

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 A

c
t 

2
0

1
0

. 

T
h

e
 n

e
w

 p
o

s
ts

 m
a

y
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 

re
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 

fo
r 

s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 

th
e

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 A

c
t 

2
0

1
0

. 

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 n

o
t 
tr

e
a

te
d

 l
e

s
s
 f
a

v
o

u
ra

b
ly

 
a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
. 

S
e

x
 (

G
e

n
d

e
r)

 
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
L

o
w

F
e

m
a

le
 s

e
n

io
r 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
r-

re
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 K

C
C

 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 (

6
5

%
 v

 8
4

%
).

F
e

m
a

le
 s

ta
ff

 m
a

y
 a

ls
o

 h
a

v
e

 s
h

o
rt

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
a

ri
n

g
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
. 

F
e

m
a

le
 s

ta
ff

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 
h

a
v
e

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 c

a
ri

n
g

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

r 
b

e
 p

a
rt

 t
im

e
.

M
o

s
t 

p
o

s
t-

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

re
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
fu

ll-
ti
m

e
.

Page 59



 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 4
  

 
 

G
e

n
d

e
r

R
e

a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t
N

o
N

o
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

e
n

d
e

r 
re

a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t 
s
h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 a

 
fa

c
to

r 
in

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 e
it
h
e

r 
in

 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
in

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
o

le
s
. 

R
a

c
e

N
o

N
o

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 

R
e

lig
io

n
 o

r 
b

e
lie

f
N

o
N

o
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
A

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 

S
e

x
u

a
l

o
ri

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
N

o
N

o
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
A

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 

M
a

rr
ia

g
e

 &
 

C
iv

il
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

N
o

N
o

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 &

 
M

a
te

rn
it
y

N
o

N
o

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 

Page 60



Appendix 5 

Current Posts Impacted 

Chief Executive’s Department

Executive Director of Strategy and Business Support

Director of Finance (s.151) 

Director of Law & Governance (MO) 

Director of Personnel & Development 

Director of Property 

Director of Commercial Services 

Director of Strategic Development Unit & Public Access 

Director of Public Health 

Children, Families and Education  

Managing Director Children, Families & Education 

Director of Commissioning and Partnerships 

Director of Capital Programmes and Infrastructure 

Service Director - Learning 

Director of Resources and Planning 

Service Director - Specialist Children's Services 

Communities

Managing Director – Communities 

Director of Cultural Services 

Director of Community Safety & Regulatory Services 

Director of Youth Services & Kent Drugs Alcohol Action Team 

Director of Policy & Resources 

Environment, Highways & Waste 

Executive Director, Environment, Highways & Waste Directorate 

Director of Environment & Waste 

Director of Integrated Strategy & Planning 

Director of Kent Highway Services

Kent Adult Social Services 

Managing Director, Kent Adult Social Services 

Transforming Social Care - Lead Officer 

Director of Strategic Business Support 

Director of Operations 

Director of Commissioning & Provision x 2 

NB:  These are the only posts directly impacted by this process. 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Page 63

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Travel Savings
	6 Change to Keep Succeeding
	Appendices

	7 Interim Director of Integrated Transport Strategy and Planning - Extension of Temporary Employment Contract

